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131

23 103

2021 30
108.93
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PIMCO

2020 12 31

2020 12 31
usD

2.2 5 458,894,983 49,987,430
2.1 3,378,146 367,981
60,431 6,583
2.10 3 16,038,672 1,747,093
2.4 184,819 20,132
478,557,051 52,129,220
2.4 15,855,918 1,727,185
8.2B 1,547,896 168,612
8.2C 686,544 74,785
2.10 3 185,099 20,163
8.1C 174,452 19,003
8.1D 90,302 9,837
8.1A 52,890 5,761
8.1B 29,584 3,223
8.1E 25,466 2,774
8.2E 10,244 1,116
18,658,395 2,032,459
459,898,656 50,096,761
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
2020 12 31
USD
FVTPL @
706,780 76,990
2.11 7)
22,955,531 2,500,546
2.2 2,11 7
12,460 1,357
2.6 (11) (€
23,674,760 2,578,892
8.2C 2,979,873 324,598
8.28 2,446,164 266,461
8.1C 1,111,893 121,119
8.1A 268,202 29,215
8.1D 143,037 15,581
8.1B 125,534 13,674
74,937 8,163
8.2E 44,476 4,845
8.1E 42,753 4,657
33,137 3,610
3,184 347
(  8.2A) 1,555 169
7,274,745 792,438
16,400,015 1,786,454
16,400,015 1,786,454
W FVTPL
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
2019 7 9 uSsD
466,613,897 50,828,252
2.8 (23,115,256) (2,517,945)
16,400,015 1,786,454
2020 12 31 459,898,656 50,096,761
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
2020 12 31
USD
16,400,015 1,786,454
(461,900, 540) (50,314,826)
26,667,857 2,904,930
11 1
(706,780) (76,990)
(22,955,531) (2,500,546)
(184,819) (20,132)
(60,431) (6,583)
15,855,918 1,727,185
&) 2,617,378 285,111
(424,266,922) (46,215,396)
450,575,225 49,081,159
(22,930, 157) (2,497,782)
427,645,068 46,583,377
3,378,146 367,981
2.1 - -
2.1 3,378,146 367,981
12,460 1,357

(©)

75/234

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
1.
PIMCO 2013
12 2
1
2019 5 31
2019 7 9
2014 1 22
KY1-9005
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands
KY1-9007 190

190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman Islands

A A usD

B USD
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
1

2

) B USD Usp
2020 12 31 100%

1 B USD
B USD
2163 12 1

Q) 3

(i)
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
1
1 31
1
1
1
2021 4 30
2.
IFRS
IFRS
4
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27 2012
IFRS 9 3
FVTPL FVOCI IFRS
9
FVTPL
FVTPL

i) SPPI

781234
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
) SPPI
i)
iii) FVTPL
SPPI

SPPI
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PIMCO

2019 7 9 2020 12 31

ECL FVOCI

ECL

- FVTPL

ECL
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
2019 7 9
2.1
3
2020 12 31
2020
$ 28
$ 3,378,118
$ 3,378,146
2.2
®
FVTPL
2020 12 31 - 202 12 31 -

$ 458,894,983 $ 435,939,452
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®

©

()

®
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
®
NAV
)
(i) NAV (i) (iv)
1
12
1
i
ii
B 100,000
3
8
2.3

2020 12 31

2.4

83/234



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO

2019 7 9 2020 12 31

2.5

2.6

Q)

®

2.7
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PIMCO

2019 7 9 2020 12 31

2020 12 31

2.8

IAS 32

2020 12 31
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PIMCO

2019 7 9 2020 12 31

2.9

2.10

2.11 FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL

2.12
2063 12 2

1 2020 12 31

86/234



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO

2019 7 9 2020 12 31

IAS 12

2020 12 31

2.13

1 100
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PIMCO

2019 7 9

2020 12 31
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2020 12 31

2020 12 31

$

459,898,656

4,413,801

$

104.1956

100%

%

2.00%

1.60%

1.20%

0.80%

albjlwlN

0.40%

Ol |WIN]|FP|F-
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
2020 12 31
2019 7 9
( 2020 12 31
A $ — $ 466,613,897 $ (23,115,256) $ 443,498,641
2020 12 31
2019 7 9
( 2020 12 31
A - 4,642,188 (228,387) 4,413,801
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PIMCO

2019 7 9 2020 12 31

5.1

®
@™

90/234



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO

2019 7 9 2020 12 31

IMF
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
2020 12 31 50
1
16,891
Gii)
2020 12 31 1%

4,588,950 1%
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PIMCO

2019 7 9 2020 12 31

2020 12 31

%
$ 643,261 0.1%
807,694 0.2%
4,337 0.0%*
391,919 0.1%
42,667,977 9.2%
257,094 0.1%
21,915,414 4.8%
134,820 0.0%*
924,311 0.2%
7,337,663 1.6%
265,252 0.1%
239,557 0.1%
11,894,386 2.6%
741,508 0.2%
3,548,693 0.8%
14,195,274 3.1%
190 0.0%*
628,967 0.1%
9,778,466 2.1%
2,961,475 0.6%
17,260 0.0%*
7,822,074 1.7%
2,213,957 0.5%
261,180 0.1%
1,553,370 0.3%
171,064 0.0%*
804,880 0.2%
2,532,278 0.6%
1,956,652 0.4%
250,433 0.1%
248,464 0.1%
7,771,813 1.7%
4,658,169 1.0%
738,983 0.2%
488,800 0.1%
371,221,517 80.8%
$ 522,049,152 113.8%

* 0.0% 0.05%

93/234



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO

2019 7 9 2020 12 31

®

2020 12 31

2020 12 31
A
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
2020 12 31
%
* %
Aaa 24.9%
Aal 1.6%
Aa2 0.5%
Aa3 0.1%
Al 0.6%
A2 4.1%
A3 1.3%
Baal 0.8%
Baa2 3.1%
Baa3 5.3%
Bal 1.8%
Ba2 5.0%
Ba3 2.8%
B1 4.7%
B2 2.3%
B3 0.6%
Caal 0.9%
Caa2 1.9%
Caa3 1.1%
Ca 1.2%
C 0.6%
NR 46.8%
WR 1.8%
113.8%
* /S&P/
©
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
2020 12 31 1 13
15,855,918 - 15,855,918
1,547,896 - 1,547,896
686,544 - 686,544
185,099 - 185,099
174,452 - 174,452
90,302 - 90,302
52,890 - 52,890
29,584 - 29,584
25,466 - 25,466
10,244 - 10,244
$ 18,658,395 $ - $ 18,658,395
15%
2020 12 31

2020 12 31
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PIMCO

2019 7 9 2020 12 31

()

5.2

Q)

®

©
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PIMCO

2019 7 9 2020 12 31

()

2020 12 31

®

2020 12 31
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PIMCO

2019 7 9 2020 12 31

®

©

Q)

2163 12 1

Q)

5.3
IFRS 13
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PIMCO

2019 7 9 2020 12 31
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
1 2 3
B
$ - 3 458,894,983 $ - $ 458,894,983
$ - $ 458,894,983 $ - $ 458,894,983
2020 12 31 1 2 3
2
2
NAV
2
2 2020 12 31

(i) 2020 12 31 2020 12 31
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
5.4
2020 12 31 458,892,672 2020 12 31
559,561,964
522,049,152 41,775,820
220,960 1,640,269 2,582,382
109,934 151,383
1
6.
100%
2020 12 31
7.
2020 12 31
$ 706,769
11
$ 706,780

$ 22,955,531

$ 22,955,531
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
8.
8.1
®
5 0.06% 5 10 0.05% 10
0.04% 3,750 2020 12 31
2020 12 31
®
0.025% 2020 12 31
2020 12 31
©
0.25%
2020 12 31 2020 12 31
©
0.01% 1 10
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
®
2020 12 31 2020
12 31
8.2
®
10,000 2020

12 31 2020 12 31
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
®
0.55%
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
©
0.12%
0.55%
2020 12 31 2020 12 31
31
Actual/365
()]
5,000
2020 12 31 2020 12 31
®
0.01%

2020 12 31 2020 12 31
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PIMCO
2019 7 9 2020 12 31
9.
10%
2020 12 31
10.

2021 4 30
2021 1 1 2021 4 30 92,953,292 36,618,520
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2020 10 31

528,387 57,557
0 0

193 21
1,353 147

0 0

5,790 631
86 9

485 53

0 0

TBA 210,087 22,885
5,545 604
2,557 279
754,483 82,186
11,189 1,219
0 0

96 10

549 60
1,743 190

0 0

TBA 347,116 37,811
0 0

138 15
1,082 118
290 32

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
362,203 39,455
392,280 42,731
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526,850 57,390
0 0
129 14
(474) (52)
7,500 817
392,280 42,731
3,793

108/234
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2020 10 31

8,545 931

3 0

0 0

8,548 931

0 0

7 1

1 0

0 0

8 1

8,540 930

4,643 506

0 0
(444) (48)
(3,247) (354)
(197) (21)

755 82

349 38

0 0
(2,652) (289)

2,010 219
(200) (22)
(493) (54)

262 29

8,802 959

1 0
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2020 10 31
8,540 930
755 82
(493) (54)
8,802 959
0 0
’ 146,757 15,986
155,559 16,945
236,721 25,786
392,280 42,731

12
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2020 10 31
100.72 10,971
@) 257 280
0.12 13
2.69 T 203
0.00 0.00
103.41 11,264
(b) 2.67
392,280 42,731
. 0.00
y 0.00
- 255

0.01
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2020 10 31
134.7%
5.0%

Al Convoy (Luxembourg) Sari
4.500% due 01/17/2027 $ 16 $ 16
Ancestry.com Operations, Inc.
4.750% due 10/19/2023 198 198
APi Group DE, Inc.
2.648% due 10/01/2026 99 97
Azalea TopCo, Inc.
3.648-3.714% due 07/24/2026 8 8
Banijay Entertainment SAS
3.890% due 03/01/2025 9 9
Caesars Resort Collection LLC
2.898% due 12/23/2024 791 744
CenturyLink, Inc.
2.398% due 03/15/2027 935 902
Charter Communications Operating LLC
1.900% due 02/01/2027 928 906
Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.
3.666-3.714% due 08/21/2026 1,584 1,451
Delta Air Lines, Inc.
5.750% due 04/29/2023 119 119
Diamond Resorts International, Inc.
4.750% due 09/02/2023 642 578
Envision Healthcare Corp.
3.898% due 10/10/2025 1,185 853
EyeCare Partners LLC
3.750-3.898% due 02/18/2027 32 30
Forest City Enterprises LP
3.648% due 12/08/2025 592 576
Froneri International Ltd.
2.398% due 01/31/2027 58 56
Frontier Communications Corp.
6.000% due 06/15/2024 1,253 1,233
Genesee & Wyoming, Inc.
2.220% due 12/30/2026 29 28
Gray Television, Inc.
2.649% due 01/02/2026 512 502
iHeartCommunications, Inc.
3.148% due 05/01/2026 1,985 1,868
IngersolI-Rand Services Co.
1.898% due 03/01/2027 56 54
Intelsat Jackson Holdings S.A.
3.600-6.500% due 07/13/2022 1,365 1,376
8.000% due 11/27/2023 1,510 1,523
IRB Holding Corp.
3.750% due 02/05/2025 790 754
Jefferies Finance LLC
3.188% due 06/03/2026 16 15
Lealand Finance Co. BV
3.148% due 06/30/2024 28 23
4.148% due 06/30/2025 3 2
NASCAR Holdings LLC
2.902% due 10/19/2026 12 12
NMG Holding Co., Inc.
13.000% due 09/25/2025 379 396
PetSmart Inc.
4.500% due 03/11/2022 839 833
Pug LLC
3.648% due 02/12/2027 20 17
Sequa Mezzanine Holdings LLC
1.000% due 07/23/2025 1,949 1,857
5.000% due 04/28/2024 146 117
7.750% due 11/28/2023 1,226 1,169
Sotera Health Holdings LLC
5.500% due 12/11/2026 64 64
Sunshine Luxembourg VIl SARL
5.250% due 10/01/2026 408 404
Univision Communications, Inc.
3.750% due 03/15/2024 354 343

112/234



2020 10 31

Valaris PLC

8.000% due 08/17/2021
Windstream Services 11 LLC
7.250% due 09/21/2027

Zayo Group Holdings, Inc.
3.148% due 03/09/2027

$20,404
35.3%

14.6%
Ally Financial, Inc.
4.250% due 04/15/2021
Altarea S.C.A.
1.875% due 01/17/2028
Avolon Holdings Funding Ltd.
2.875% due 02/15/2025
3.250% due 02/15/2027
5.500% due 01/15/2023
Banca Carige SpA
1.189% due 10/25/2021
Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena SpA
0.875% due 10/08/2026
Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria S.A.
8.875% due 04/14/2021 (b)(c)
Bank of Ireland Group PLC
7.500% due 05/19/2025 (b)(c)
Barclays Bank PLC
7.625% due 11/21/2022 (b)
Barclays PLC
1.660% due 05/16/2024
3.250% due 01/17/2033
3.375% due 04/02/2025
4.972% due 05/16/2029
6.125% due 12/15/2025 (b)(c)
7.125% due 06/15/2025 (b)(c)
8.000% due 12/15/2020 (b)(c)
BGC Parmers, Inc.
3.750% due 10/01/2024
BOC Aviation Ltd.
2.375% due 09/15/2021
CIT Group, Inc.
4.750% due 02/16/2024
Cooperatieve Rabobank UA
6.625% due 06/29/2021 (b)(c)
CPI1 Property Group S.A.
1.625% due 04/23/2027
2.750% due 05/12/2026
2.750% due 01/22/2028
4.750% due 03/08/2023
Credit Suisse AG
6.500% due 08/08/2023 (b)
Credit Suisse Group AG (b)(c)
6.250% due 12/18/2024
7.500% due 12/11/2023
Deutsche Bank AG
1.625% due 01/20/2027
2.625% due 12/16/2024
3.375% due 05/12/2021
3.961% due 11/26/2025
Equinix, Inc.
2.875% due 02/01/2026
Fairfax Financial Holdings Ltd.
4.625% due 04/29/2030
GE Capital Funding LLC
4.400% due 05/15/2030
GE Capital International Funding Company Unlimited Co.
4.418% due 11/15/2035

113/234
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11 11

260 247

299 288

19,679

240 244

EUR 100 112
$ 88 83
23 21

684 699

EUR 500 586
100 122

200 239

422 519

$ 5,300 5,840
200 201

GBP 350 494
EUR 500 633
$ 200 234
200 204

GBP 300 408
EUR 356 418
$ 18 18
800 805

600 646

EUR 600 720
100 114

100 121

GBP 600 766
$ 400 426
300 339

2,600 2,777

480 523

EUR 1,800 2,124
GBP 1,100 1,460
$ 2,680 2,711
680 728

EUR 180 213
$ 42 45
1,000 1,094

200 216
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2020 10 31
GE Capital UK Funding Unlimited Co.
4.125% due 09/13/2023 GBP 100 139
Howard Hughes Corp.
5.375% due 03/15/2025 $ 179 180
HSBC Holdings PLC
2.357% due 08/18/2031 1,100 1,095
2.848% due 06/04/2031 2,435 2,530
Intesa Sanpaolo SpA
7.000% due 01/19/2021 (b)(c) EUR 730 854
Kennedy-Wilson, Inc.
5.875% due 04/01/2024 $ 42 41
Ladder Capital Finance Holdings LLLP
4.250% due 02/01/2027 18 16
Lloyds Banking Group PLC
3.574% due 11/07/2028 780 857
7.875% due 06/27/2029 (b)(c) GBP 212 317
Nationwide Building Society
3.960% due 07/18/2030 $ 850 958
Natwest Group PLC
4.892% due 05/18/2029 500 588
6.000% due 12/29/2025 (b)(c) 500 519
8.625% due 08/15/2021 (b)(c) 2,900 2,999
Navient Corp.
5.500% due 01/25/2023 310 310
5.875% due 03/25/2021 394 399
6.500% due 06/15/2022 404 413
6.625% due 07/26/2021 500 511
NE Property BV
1.875% due 10/09/2026 EUR 200 215
Newmark Group, Inc.
6.125% due 11/15/2023 $ 654 693
Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc.
3.625% due 10/01/2029 18 18
OneMain Finance Corp.
5.625% due 03/15/2023 1,312 1,370
6.125% due 05/15/2022 684 714
6.125% due 03/15/2024 666 701
Park Aerospace Holdings Ltd.
5.250% due 08/15/2022 418 431
QNB Finance Ltd.
1.311% due 02/12/2022 1,600 1,603
Sabra Health Care LP
3.900% due 10/15/2029 6 6
4.800% due 06/01/2024 442 467
Sagax AB
1.125% due 01/30/2027 EUR 100 117
Samhal Isbyggnadsbolaget i Norden AB
1.000% due 08/12/2027 100 115
Santander UK Group Holdings PLC
7.375% due 06/24/2022 (b)(c) GBP 228 306
Sberbank of Russia Via SB Capital S.A.
5.717% due 06/16/2021 $ 1,280 1,314
6.125% due 02/07/2022 200 211
UBS AG (b)
4.750% due 02/12/2026 EUR 1,940 2,283
5.125% due 05/15/2024 $ 1,500 1,651
UniCredit SpA
7.830% due 12/04/2023 700 821
9.250% due 06/03/2022 (b)(c) EUR 800 1,002
Uniti Group LP
7.875% due 02/15/2025 $ 1,149 1,221
VICI Properties LP
3.500% due 02/15/2025 112 113
3.750% due 02/15/2027 114 114
4.125% due 08/15/2030 132 134
4.250% due 12/01/2026 100 102
4.625% due 12/01/2029 100 104
Wells Fargo & Co.
1.338% due 05/04/2025 EUR 1,420 1,706
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WPC Eurobond BV

1.350% due 04/15/2028 EUR 100 $ 119
57,280

14.8%

Airbus SE

2.375% due 06/09/2040 100 122

Albertsons Cos., Inc.

4.625% due 01/15/2027 $ 6 6

4.875% due 02/15/2030 9 10

Altice Financing S.A.

3.000% due 01/15/2028 EUR 400 425

5.000% due 01/15/2028 $ 200 194

Altice France S.A.

2.125% due 02/15/2025 EUR 310 337

ArcelorMittal S.A.

1.000% due 05/19/2023 200 232

Arconic Corp.

6.000% due 05/15/2025 $ 29 31

Aviation Capital Group LLC

2.875% due 01/20/2022 600 599

3.875% due 05/01/2023 900 903

Banner Health

2.338% due 01/01/2030 49 50

3.181% due 01/01/2050 34 35

BAT International Finance PLC

1.668% due 03/25/2026 1,000 1,005

Boeing Co.

5.040% due 05/01/2027 178 196

5.150% due 05/01/2030 286 317

5.705% due 05/01/2040 432 503

5.805% due 05/01/2050 335 395

5.930% due 05/01/2060 503 598

Bombardier, Inc.

5.750% due 03/15/2022 66 63

6.000% due 10/15/2022 38 34

6.125% due 01/15/2023 14 12

7.500% due 03/15/2025 5 4

7.875% due 04/15/2027 82 60

Broadcom, Inc.

3.150% due 11/15/2025 1,400 1,511

4.150% due 11/15/2030 186 209

4.300% due 11/15/2032 191 218

5.000% due 04/15/2030 6 7

Camelot Finance S.A.

4.500% due 11/01/2026 4 4

CCO Holdings LLC

4.500% due 08/15/2030 90 94

4.750% due 03/01/2030 88 93

Centene Corp.

3.375% due 02/15/2030 54 56

4.250% due 12/15/2027 28 30

4.625% due 12/15/2029 35 38

4.750% due 01/15/2025 82 84

Charter Communications Operating LLC

4.800% due 03/01/2050 78 89

Citrix Systems, Inc.

3.300% due 03/01/2030 40 42

Clear Channel International BV

6.625% due 08/01/2025 900 917

Community Health Systems, Inc.

6.250% due 03/31/2023 3,475 3,449

6.625% due 02/15/2025 39 38

8.000% due 03/15/2026 100 101

8.625% due 01/15/2024 257 261

Connect Finco SARL

6.750% due 10/01/2026 16 16

Corning, Inc.

5.450% due 11/15/2079 25 32

115/234



2020 10

CRH America, Inc.

5.750% due 01/15/2021

DAE Funding LLC

5.000% due 08/01/2024
5.250% due 11/15/2021
5.750% due 11/15/2023

Delta Air Lines 2007-1 Class A Pass-Through Trust
6.821% due 08/10/2022

Delta Air Lines, Inc.
7.000% due 05/01/2025

DISH DBS Corp.-

6.750% due 06/01/2021
Energy Transfer Operating LP
2.900% due 05/15/2025
3.750% due 05/15/2030
5.000% due 05/15/2050
Expedia Group, Inc.

6.250% due 05/01/2025
7.000% due 05/01/2025

Ford Motor Credit Co. LLC
1.744% due 07/19/2024
3.087% due 01/09/2023
5.596% due 01/07/2022

Gap, Inc.

8.375% due 05/15/2023
8.625% due 05/15/2025
8.875% due 05/15/2027
General Electric Co.

4.250% due 05/01/2040
4.350% due 05/01/2050
General Motors Co.

6.800% due 10/01/2027 (i)
Huntsman International LLC
5.125% due 11/15/2022

Hyatt Hotels Corp.

3.246% due 09/01/2022
iHeartCommunications, Inc.
4.750% due 01/15/2028
Intelsat Jackson Holdings S.A. (d)
5.500% due 08/01/2023
8.500% due 10/15/2024
9.750% due 07/15/2025
JetBlue 2020-1 Class A Pass-Through Trust
4.000% due 11/15/2032

Kraft Heinz Foods Co.
3.000% due 06/01/2026
3.750% due 04/01/2030
3.875% due 05/15/2027
4.250% due 03/01/2031
5.500% due 06/01/2050

Level 3 Financing, Inc.
3.875% due 11/15/2029
Marriott International, Inc.
4.625% due 06/15/2030
Marriott Ownership Resorts, Inc.
6.125% due 09/15/2025

Melco Resorts Finance Ltd.
5.375% due 12/04/2029
Micron Technology, Inc.
4.663% due 02/15/2030

NCL Corp. Ltd.

3.625% due 12/15/2024
Netflix, Inc.

3.625% due 06/15/2030
4.875% due 06/15/2030

New Red Finance, Inc.
4.375% due 01/15/2028
Nissan Motor Acceptance Corp.
1.114% due 01/13/2022
1.900% due 09/14/2021
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$ 270 $ 273
250 253

1,000 1,018

300 304

125 127

432 472

800 817

18 18

41 40

38 36

190 209

79 85

EUR 100 110
$ 200 198
3,700 3,798

76 85

336 369

173 198

24 25

1,026 1,095

32 39

300 322

1,000 1,012

1,360 1,301

609 359

517 321

421 264

200 207

120 122

106 111

158 167

137 149

67 7

42 45

14 15

36 38

800 772

582 682

4 3

EUR 100 127
$ 100 114
11 11

6 6

11 11
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3.650% due 09/21/2021 $ 800 $ 815
Nissan Motor Co. Ltd.
2.652% due 03/17/2026 EUR 10,607 12,519
Noble Holding International Ltd.
7.875% due 02/01/2026 (d) $ 184 45
Nokia 0YJ
3.125% due 05/15/2028 EUR 100 126
NXP BV
3.400% due 05/01/2030 $ 14 15
Occidental Petroleum Corp.
1.730% due 08/15/2022 87 80
ortho-Clinical Diagnostics, Inc.
7.250% due 02/01/2028 144 151
7.375% due 06/01/2025 59 62
Pacific Drilling S.A.
8.375% due 10/01/2023 188 23
Petroleos Mexicanos
5.950% due 01/28/2031 352 295
6.490% due 01/23/2027 20 19
6.500% due 03/13/2027 720 670
6.500% due 01/23/2029 397 355
6.840% due 01/23/2030 693 621
6.950% due 01/28/2060 190 149
7.690% due 01/23/2050 20 17
Post Holdings, Inc.
4.625% due 04/15/2030 32 33
Rolls-Royce PLC
0.875% due 05/09/2024 EUR 200 211
Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd.
10.875% due 06/01/2023 $ 213 233
11.500% due 06/01/2025 330 378
Sands China Ltd.
5.125% due 08/08/2025 1,717 1,853
Six Flags Theme Parks, Inc.
7.000% due 07/01/2025 27 29
Southwest Airlines Co.
4.750% due 05/04/2023 36 39
5.125% due 06/15/2027 91 101
5.250% due 05/04/2025 32 36
Southwest Airlines Company 2007-1 Pass-Through Trust
6.650% due 08/01/2022 71 70
Sprint Spectrum Co. LLC
3.360% due 09/20/2021 75 76
Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands Il BV
1.250% due 03/31/2023 EUR 100 109
6.000% due 01/31/2025 100 121
Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands 111 BV
2.200% due 07/21/2021 $ 579 571
2.800% due 07/21/2023 200 190
Topaz Solar Farms LLC
5.750% due 09/30/2039 376 427
TransDigm, Inc.
5.500% due 11/15/2027 24 23
Transocean Guardian Ltd.
5.875% due 01/15/2024 21 13
Transocean, Inc.
7.250% due 11/01/2025 56 19
7.500% due 01/15/2026 62 13
8.000% due 02/01/2027 65 18
United Airlines 2020-1 Class A Pass-Through Trust
5.875% due 10/15/2027 600 603
United Group BV
3.125% due 02/15/2026 EUR 100 109
3.625% due 02/15/2028 100 109
Univision Communications, Inc.
5.125% due 02/15/2025 $ 50 49
9.500% due 05/01/2025 48 52
Valaris PLC (d)
5.750% due 10/01/2044 86 4
7.750% due 02/01/2026 14 1
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Vale Overseas Ltd.

6.875% due 11/21/2036
Vale S.A.

3.750% due 01/10/2023
VMware, Inc.

4.700% due 05/15/2030
Volkswagen Financial Services NV
1.125% due 09/18/2023
Western Midstream Operating LP
2.074% due 01/13/2023
6.250% due 02/01/2050
Windstream Escrow LLC
7.750% due 08/15/2028
Wyndham Destinations, Inc.
4.625% due 03/01/2030
6.000% due 04/01/2027
Wynn Macau Ltd.

5.125% due 12/15/2029
Zayo Group Holdings, Inc.
4.000% due 03/01/2027
6.125% due 03/01/2028

5.9%
ATE&T, Inc.
3.500% due 06/01/2041
3.650% due 06/01/2051
3.850% due 06/01/2060
CenturyLink, Inc.
4.000% due 02/15/2027
Edison International
2.400% due 09/15/2022
3.125% due 11/15/2022
3.550% due 11/15/2024
5.750% due 06/15/2027
Gazprom Neft OAO Via GPN Capital S.A.
4.375% due 09/19/2022
6.000% due 11/27/2023
Gazprom PJSC Via Gaz Capital S.A.
8.625% due 04/28/2034
Korea Resources Corp.
3.000% due 04/24/2022
Pacific Gas & Electric Co.
950% due 03/01/2026
150% due 01/01/2026
250% due 06/15/2023
450% due 07/01/2025
500% due 06/15/2025
.750% due 02/15/2024
.750% due 07/01/2028
.250% due 03/15/2046
.450% due 04/15/2042
.500% due 07/01/2040
.500% due 12/15/2041
.550% due 07/01/2030
.750% due 02/15/2044
.950% due 07/01/2050
Petrobras Global Finance BV
5.093% due 01/15/2030
6.250% due 12/14/2026
Sabine Pass Liquefaction LLC
4.500% due 05/15/2030
Southern California Edison Co.
2.850% due 08/01/2029
3.650% due 02/01/2050
Sprint Communications, Inc.
6.000% due 11/15/2022
Sprint Corp.
7.125% due 06/15/2024
7.250% due 09/15/2021
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EUR 300 371
$ 2,006 2,371
GBP 2,100 2,719
$ 24 22
18 17

788 762

23 22

602 622

200 185

276 271

46 46

58,220

411 418

387 379

296 293

34 35

43 44

33 34

37 39

63 72

400 418

200 222

430 643

1,900 1,956

3 3

5,277 5,404

682 703

403 420

685 715

129 135

403 416

300 290

50 50

11 11

57 56

889 960

200 204

590 624

364 382

GBP 667 966
$ 186 208
7 7

18 19

1,872 2,006

50 58

1,102 1,149
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7.875% due 09/15/2023 $ 3,189 $ 3,641
YPF S.A.
33.163% due 03/04/2021 ARS 1,110 7
22,987
138,487
$137,507
0.0%
Ensco Jersey Finance Ltd.
3.000% due 01/31/2024 (d) $ 2 0
0
$1
44_.0%
Fannie Mae
3.000% due 09/25/2046 (e) 2,875 333
3.000% due 03/01/2050 2,430 2,574
4.000% due 09/01/2048 254 271
4.000% due 05/01/2050 17,697 18,899
5.777% due 01/25/2043 76 78
Fannie Mae, TBA (F)
2.000% due 01/01/2051 32,900 33,796
2.500% due 01/01/2051 55,400 57,575
3.000% due 12/01/2050 13,500 14,113
3.000% due 01/01/2051 1,300 1,359
3.500% due 11/01/2050 1,400 1,479
4.000% due 11/01/2050 15,500 16,558
4.000% due 12/01/2050 400 428
Freddie Mac
2.000% due 08/01/2050 492 507
2.500% due 01/15/2028 (e) 2,049 112
3.000% due 09/01/2049 1,162 1,251
4.000% due 05/01/2049 6,669 7,131
4.000% due 02/01/2050 1,104 1,179
4.000% due 03/01/2050 2,858 3,082
5.802% due 02/15/2044 (e) 3,300 575
Ginnie Mae, TBA ()
4.000% due 11/01/2050 5,800 6,170
4.000% due 12/01/2050 5,000 5,322
172,792
$172,884
4.8%
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (g)
0.125% due 07/15/2030 (m) 1,014 1,114
0.250% due 07/15/2029 915 1,013
0.250% due 02/15/2050 809 931
0.750% due 02/15/2042 115 142
0.750% due 02/15/2045 221 276
0.875% due 02/15/2047 431 561
1.000% due 02/15/2046 110 145
1.000% due 02/15/2048 632 854
1.000% due 02/15/2049 (k) 1,549 2,114
U.S. Treasury Notes
1.500% due 02/15/2030 (k) 10,900 11,573
18,723
$18,850
30.7%
Alternative Loan Trust
0.331% due 02/20/2047 (d) 885 677
0.689% due 01/25/2036 3,250 3,139
3.582% due 05/20/2046 2,802 2,420
American Home Mortgage Investment Trust
0.974% due 02/25/2045 1,681 1,548
Ameriquest Mortgage Securities, Inc. Asset-Backed Pass-Through
Certificates
1.184% due 12/25/2033 275 274
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Argent Securities, Inc. Asset-Backed Pass-Through Certificates
1.009% due 01/25/2034

Banc of America Commercial Mortgage Trust
5.822% due 02/10/2051 (d)

Bear Stearns Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
5.312% due 06/11/2041

Carrington Mortgage Loan Trust

0.519% due 02/25/2036

Citigroup Mortgage Loan Trust

3.228% due 09/25/2059

3.763% due 11/25/2038

4.899% due 07/25/2036 (d)

Commercial Mortgage Lease-Backed Certificates
8.078% due 06/20/2031

Countrywide Asset-Backed Certificates
0.399% due 02/25/2036

0.479% due 07/25/2036

Countrywide Home Loan Mortgage Pass-Through Trust
0.869% due 02/25/2035

Credit Sulisse Mortgage Capital

3.074% due 07/27/2037

Credit Sulisse Mortgage Capital Trust
3.116% due 12/26/2059

3.322% due 10/25/2058

Deephaven Residential Mortgage Trust
2.791% due 10/25/2059

Ellington Loan Acquisition Trust

1.249% due 05/25/2037

Finsbury Square PLC

1.010% due 09/12/2068

1.023% due 06/16/2069

1.089% due 09/16/2069

First Franklin Mortgage Loan Trust

1.034% due 03/25/2035

1.099% due 07/25/2033

Freddie Mac Multifamily Structured Pass-Through Certificates
0.880% due 06/25/2029 (e)

2.856% due 12/25/2047

2.897% due 10/25/2046

Fremont Home Loan Trust

0.559% due 11/25/2035

GCAT LLC

2.981% due 09/25/2025

GS Mortgage-Backed Securities Trust
3.750% due 10/25/2057

GSAMP Trust

0.289% due 03/25/2047

Hawksmoor Mortgages

1.112% due 05/25/2053

IXIS Real Estate Capital Trust

0.779% due 02/25/2036

JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
5.126% due 01/12/2037

5.855% due 06/12/2043

6.169% due 02/12/2051

JPMorgan Mortgage Acquisition Trust
0.359% due 10/25/2036

JPMorgan Mortgage Trust

5.500% due 12/27/2035

Legacy Mortgage Asset Trust

3.000% due 06/25/2059

London Wall Mortgage Capital PLC

0.923% due 11/15/2049

MASTR Adjustable Rate Mortgages Trust
0.459% due 09/25/2037

MASTR Asset-Backed Securities Trust
0.279% due 10/25/2036
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$ 1,596 $ 1,525
408 432

73 74

3,000 2,415

1,696 1,713

937 955

51 51

2,000 2,182

3,400 3,157

539 517

2,092 1,971

5,202 4,871

1,831 1,837

1,728 1,743

4,281 4,347

2,988 2,969

GBP 406 525
412 533

460 596

$ 56 56
619 607

1,598 106

665 696

767 834

700 640

3,350 3,356

5,424 5,785

1,681 1,592

GBP 611 790
$ 341 342
975 986

199 200

788 793

677 660

122 124

2,362 2,374

GBP 1,521 1,963
$ 2,164 2,112
241 150
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Mill City Mortgage Loan Trust

2.750% due 07/25/2059

Morgan Stanley Asset-Backed Securities Capital I, Inc. Trust
2.099% due 06/25/2034

Morgan Stanley Capital | Trust

5.574% due 11/12/2049

6.014% due 06/11/2042

PHH Alternative Mortgage Trust

6.000% due 02/25/2037 (d)

Precise Mortgage Funding PLC

0.984% due 10/16/2056

RBSSP Resecuritization Trust

0.348% due 12/26/2036

Residential Mortgage Acceptance Corporation PLC
0.760% due 06/12/2046

Residential Mortgage Securities 31 PLC

1.257% due 09/20/2065

Structured Asset Securities Corporation Mortgage Loan Trust
0.369% due 10/25/2037

Towd Point Mortgage Funding

0.953% due 07/20/2045

1.263% due 02/20/2054

Towd Point Mortgage Trust

2.900% due 10/25/2059

3.000% due 11/25/2058

3.000% due 11/25/2059

4.400% due 11/25/2058

4.500% due 10/25/2058

Twin Bridges PLC

1.210% due 06/12/2053

Wachovia Bank Commercial Mortgage Trust
5.779% due 04/15/2047

WaMu Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Trust
2.082% due 11/25/2042

$120,220
8.6%

ACA ABS Ltd.
1.201% due 08/01/2037
Aurium CLO 111 DAC
0.670% due 04/16/2030
Ayresome CDO I Ltd.
0.518% due 12/08/2045
BNPP AM Euro CLO BV
0.650% due 10/15/2031
Chesapeake Funding 11 LLC
3.040% due 04/15/2030
Credit Acceptance Auto Loan Trust
3.330% due 02/15/2028
Enterprise Fleet Financing LLC
2.980% due 10/20/2024
Euro-Galaxy V CLO BV
0.820% due 11/10/2030
Flagship Credit Auto Trust
2.660% due 10/17/2022
Ford Credit Auto Owner Trust
3.190% due 07/15/2031
GLS Auto Receivables Issuer Trust
2.170% due 02/15/2024
3.370% due 01/17/2023
Harvest CLO XIV DAC
0.630% due 11/18/2029
Hyundai Auto Lease Securitization Trust
2.080% due 12/15/2021
Man GLG Euro CLO Il DAC
0.870% due 01/15/2030
Marlette Funding Trust
2.690% due 09/17/2029

31

121/234

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

$ 773 $ 802
1,770 1,762

462 374

4,594 4,676

4,290 4,020

GBP 3,055 3,940
$ 1,522 1,520
GBP 817 1,045
1,006 1,303

$ 3,848 2,724
GBP 3,178 4,090
3,571 4,623

$ 3,881 4,120
2,430 2,493

945 962

6,200 6,450

5,400 5,596

GBP 3,342 4,328
$ 521 508
668 639

120,612

700 695

EUR 3,400 3,938
$ 1,725 1,716
EUR 2,500 2,891
$ 151 153
290 296

60 61

EUR 900 1,044
$ 284 285
295 322

2,046 2,070

127 128

EUR 1,855 2,139
$ 1,340 1,345
EUR 800 927
$ 86 86
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Mountain View CLO X Ltd.

1.044% due 10/13/2027

Navient Private Education Loan Trust
3.910% due 12/15/2045

Ocean Trails CLO VI

1.387% due 07/15/2028

OneMain Direct Auto Receivables Trust
3.430% due 12/16/2024

Onemain Financial Issuance Trust
3.300% due 03/14/2029

0SCAR U.S. Funding Trust IX LLC
3.390% due 09/12/2022

0SCAR U.S. Funding Trust VI LLC
3.300% due 05/10/2024

0ZLM XXI11 Ltd.

1.707% due 04/15/2032

Palmer Square Loan Funding Ltd.
1.068% due 01/20/2027

1.115% due 10/24/2027

RFC CDO Ltd.

2.764% due 03/15/2040

Shackleto IX CLO Ltd.

1.348% due 10/20/2028

SMB Private Education Loan Trust
2.340% due 09/15/2034

SoFi Consumer Loan Program Trust
2.900% due 05/25/2028

SoFi Professional Loan Program LLC
2.720% due 11/26/2040

Sound Point CLO XIV Ltd.

1.359% due 01/23/2029

STWD Ltd.

1.228% due 07/15/2038

Sudbury Mill CLO Ltd.

1.368% due 01/17/2026

Upstart Securitization Trust
2.897% due 09/20/2029

Vendome Funding CLO DAC

1.860% due 07/20/2031

Venture XVI CLO Ltd.

1.087% due 01/15/2028

$32,843
3.3%

Abu Dhabi Government International Bond
3.875% due 04/16/2050
Argentina Government International Bond
0.125% due 07/09/2041
1.000% due 07/09/2029
Argentina Treasury Bills
32.921% due 04/03/2022
Argentina Treasury Bond BONCER
1.000% due 08/05/2021 (g)
Australia Government Bond
1.750% due 06/21/2051
Guatemala Government Bond
6.125% due 06/01/2050
Indonesia Government International Bond
4.200% due 10/15/2050
Israel Government International Bond
3.800% due 05/13/2060
4.500% due 04/03/2120
Mexico Government International Bond
4.750% due 04/27/2032
5.000% due 04/27/2051
Peru Government International Bond
5.350% due 08/12/2040
5.400% due 08/12/2034
5.940% due 02/12/2029
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300 303
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114 115

274 279

1,300 1,290

1,000 987

56 56

230 232

EUR 3,098 3,630
$ 393 390
33,580

400 476

1,186 405

17 7

ARS 3,220 19
102 1

AUD 1,100 764
$ 200 248
200 231

400 461

200 262

200 229

200 229

PEN 1,430 387
200 58

i 14



2020 10 31

5.940% due 02/12/2029

6.150% due 08/12/2032

6.350% due 08/12/2028

6.950% due 08/12/2031

8.200% due 08/12/2026

Provincia de Buenos Aires

34.027% due 05/31/2022

Qatar Government International Bond
4.400% due 04/16/2050

Saudi Government International Bond
3.250% due 10/26/2026

Serbia Government International Bond
3.125% due 05/15/2027

South Africa Government International Bond
4.850% due 09/30/2029

5.750% due 09/30/2049

Turkey Government International Bond
4.250% due 03/13/2025

5.250% due 03/13/2030

5.600% due 11/14/2024

5.750% due 05/11/2047

7.625% due 04/26/2029

Ukraiine Government International Bond
7.750% due 09/01/2021

$13,236
0.1%

Mcdermott International Ltd.
Neiman Marcus Group Ltd. LLC (i)

( $167)
0.1%
Uniti Group, Inc.
$160
0.2%
Windstream Services LLC
03/24/2021
$430
2.6%
G) 1.9%
0.0%

Pan American Energy LLC
33.604% due 02/26/2021 (h)
0.7%
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd.

(0.020%) due 11/02/2020
0.010% due 11/02/2020

Bank of Nova Scotia
0.010% due 11/02/2020
0.010% due 11/02/2020

BNP Paribas Bank
(0.700%) due 11/02/2020
0.010% due 11/02/2020

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
(0.700%) due 11/02/2020
(0.270%) due 11/02/2020
(0.260%) due 11/02/2020
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PEN 760 $ 251
1,496 477

2,401 812

11 4

302 112

ARS 24,400 140
$ 200 255
1,400 1,528

EUR 124 157
$ 200 199
200 181

3,000 2,745

600 524

500 482

211 164

270 273

712 735

12,830

1,220 2

4,789 399

401

25,328 223

223

50,254 918

918

7,500

ARS 1,008 6
AUD 1 0
$ 388 388
CAD 114 86
$ 25 25
EUR 33 38
$ 407 407
EUR 0 1
\ 4 $ 0
SEK 1 0
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2020 10 31
(0.100%) due 11/02/2020 NOK 5 1
0.010% due 11/02/2020 CAD 4 3
0.010% due 11/02/2020 GBP 1 1
Citibank N.A.
0.010% due 11/02/2020 $ 212 212
DBS Bank Ltd.
0.010% due 11/02/2020 565 565
HSBC Bank PLC
(0.700%) due 11/02/2020 EUR 16 18
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
0.010% due 11/02/2020 $ 424 424
MUFG Bank Ltd.
(0.270%) due 11/02/2020 \ 6,429 61
Royal Bank of Canada
0.010% due 11/02/2020 CAD 85 64
Sumitomo Mitsul Banking Corp.
(0.700%) due 11/02/2020 EUR 18 21
(0.270%) due 11/02/2020 \ 4 0
0.010% due 11/02/2020 $ 24 24
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd.
(0.700%) due 11/02/2020 EUR 31 36
(0.270%) due 11/02/2020 \ 1,081 10
0.010% due 11/02/2020 GBP 87 113
0.010% due 11/02/2020 $ 138 138
2,636
10,142
$10,148
(2) 134.7% $ 528,387
$526,850
M) 0.2% 901
$(474)
(34.9%) (137,008)
100.0% $ 392,280
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Assets December 31, 2020
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 5) $ 458,894,983
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2.1) 3,378,146
Prepaid fees 60,431
Receivables for:

Units issued (Note 2.10, 3) 16,038,672

Sale of investment in the Selected Fund (Note 2.4) 184,819
Total assets 478,557,051

Liabilities

Payables for:

Purchase of investment in the Selected Fund (Note 2.4) 15,855,918
Investment management fees (Note 8.2B) 1,547,896
Fee agent fees (Note 8.2C) 686,544
Units repurchased (Note 2.10, 3) 185,099
Distribution fees (Note 8.1C) 174,452
Transfer agent fees (Note 8.1D) 90,302
Administrator fees (Note 8.1A) 52,890
Custody fees (Note 8.1B) 29,584
Professional fees (Note 8.1E) 25,466
Agent member company fees (Note 8.2E) 10,244
Liabilities (excluding equity) $ 18,658,395
Equity (being net assets attributable to the holder of units) $ 459,898,656

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the Period from July 9, 2019 (Commencement of Operations)
through December 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

For the period ended
Income December 31, 2020

Net income/(loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL(®

Net realized gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 2.11, 7) $ 706,780
Net change in unrealized appreciation on financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 2.11, 7) 22,955,531
Interest income 12,460
Net realized loss on foreign currency transactions (Note 2.6) (1D
Total income 23,674,760
Expenses
Fee agent fees (Note 8.2C) 2,979,873
Investment management fees (Note 8.2B) 2,446,164
Distribution fees (Note 8.1C) 1,111,893
Administrator fees (Note 8.1A) 268,202
Transfer agent fees (Note 8.1D) 143,037
Custody fees (Note 8.1B) 125,534
Organization expenses 74,937
Agent member company fees (Note 8.2E) 44,476
Professional fees (Note 8.1E) 42,753
Printing fees 33,137
Registration fees 3,184
Trustee fees (Note 8.2A) 1,555
Total expenses 7,274,745
Operating profit before finance costs 16,400,015

Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets attributable to the
holder of units from operations) $ 16,400,015

@ This relates to net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
(* FVTPL” ) including realized and unrealized gains/losses on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Period from July 9, 2019 (Commencement of Operations)
through December 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

At July 9, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) $ -
Issue of units (Note 3) 466,613,897
Repurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (23,115,256)
Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets attributable to the

holder of units from operations) 16,400,015
At December 31, 2020 $ 459,898,656

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

127/234



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period from July 9, 2019 (Commencement of Operations)
through December 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

For the period ended
Cash flows from operating activities: December 31, 2020

Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets attributable to the
holder of units from operations) $ 16,400,015

Adjustments to reconcile total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets
attributable to the holder of units from operations) to cash used in operating

activities:
Purchases of investment in the Selected Fund (461,900,540)
Proceeds from disposition of investment in the Selected Fund 26,667,857
Net proceeds from foreign currency transactions 11

Net realized gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss (706,780)
Net change in unrealized appreciation on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (22,955,531)
Increase in receivables for sale of investment in the Selected Fund (184,819)
Increase in prepaid fees (60,431)
Increase in payables for purchase of investment in the Selected Fund 15,855,918
Increase in other payables® 2,617,378
Net cash used in operating activities (424,266,922)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from units issued, net of change in receivables for units issued 450,575,225
Repurchases of units, net of change in payables for units repurchased (22,930,157)
Net cash provided by financing activities 427,645,068
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,378,146

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period (Note 2.1) -

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (Note 2.1) $ 3,378,146

Supplementary information on cash flows from operating activities

Interest received $ 12,460

M Other payables comprise of investment management fees, fee agent fees, distribution fees, transfer agent fees,
administrator fees, custody fees, professional fees and agent member company fees as disclosed in the
Statement of Financial Position.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Period from July 9, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. ORGANIZATION

PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund (the" Series Trust” ) is a Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust
(Cayman) 111 (the* Trust” ), an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed dated December
2, 2013 under Cayman Islands law. The Series Trust was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated
May 31, 2019 and executed by Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the* Trustee” ), a trust company incorporated under

the laws of the Cayman Islands. The Series Trust commenced operations on July 9, 2019.

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trusts Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and registered under the
Mutual Funds Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands on January 22, 2014.

The principal office for the Trustee (and therefore the Series Trust) is One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
KY1-9005, Cayman Islands (formerly 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman Islands).

The manager of the Series Trust is Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the“ Manager” ).

The Administrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (the
“ Administrator” ,“ Custodian” and“ Transfer Agent” ).

Credit Suisse International acts as the Fee Agent (the" Fee Agent” ).

Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the“ Agent Member Company” ).

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is PIMCO Japan Ltd (the" Investment Manager” ).

The Manager has authorized Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation to act as the Distributor (the* Distributor” ) of

the units in Japan.

One class of units in the Series Trust is currently available for issue: Class A Units (the “ Class A Units” ).
The Series Trust and the Class A Units are denominated in U.S. Dollars (* USD" or* $" ).

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to invest indirectly mainly in fixed income instruments, fixed income
derivatives and related assets across global markets (including emerging markets). The Series Trust aims to secure
attractive income and to seek long-term stable capital appreciation. The Series Trust seeks to achieve its investment
objective by investing substantially all of the assets of the Series Trust into the Class B (USD) Class Units of PIMCO
Bermuda Low Duration Income Fund (the "Selected Fund™).

The Selected Fund is a series trust of PIMCO Bermuda Trust 11, an umbrella unit trust established under the laws of Bermuda

as amulti-series trust (the "Umbrella Trust").
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Period from July 9, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The primary investment objective of the Selected Fund is to seek attractive income, consistent with prudent investment
management. The secondary investment objective of the Selected Fund is to seek long-term capital appreciation. Pacific
Investment Management Company LLC, which has substantial expertise in managing fixed income instruments, is acting as
both manager of the Selected Fund (the "SF Manager') and investment adviser of the Selected Fund (the SF Investment
Adviser™). The base currency of the Class B (USD) Class units is USD.

The SF Manager invests primarily inadiversified portfolio of names across the global markets which it determines to have
attractive income. The SF Manager also aims to manage the portfolio in a flexible way by adjusting the portfolio
construction of the Selected Fund in response to the market environment in consideration of interest rate risk and credit
risk in respect of the underlying portfolio.

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust shal l have day-to-day investment decision-making and ongoing monitoring
responsibility over the portion of the Series Trust"s portfolio comprising the Selected Fund and USD cash and money market
securities (the "Sub-advised Portfolio™). The Sub-advised Portfolio may generate a certain amount of income each year.
Although the Manager does not intend to distribute such income in principle, such income may be distributed to unitholders
on each distribution date.

At December 31, 2020, the Series Trust held 100.0% of the Selected Fund®s net assets.

Currently the Selected Fund has one Class of units - Class B (USD) . The Series Trust invests into the Selected Fund by
purchasing the Selected Fund"s participating shares in the Class B (USD). The Selected Fund al lows repurchases of these
shares on any business day.

Movements in the fair value of the Selected Fund"s portfolio and corresponding movements in the fair value of the Selected
Fund may expose the Series Trust to a loss.

Final Repurchase Day

The Series Trust will continue until the earlier of December 1, 2163 and the earliest practicable repurchase day fol lowing
the occurrence of a compulsory repurchase event (the* Final Repurchase Day” ), unless terminated earlier in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

The units are compulsorily repurchased upon the first to occur of any of the following:

(i) the Net Asset Value on any valuation day is $30,000,000 or less and on that valuation day or thereafter the Manager
determines that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased by giving notice to all unitholders; or

(i1) the Trustee and the Manager agree that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased, (each a ""Compulsory

Repurchase Event').
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Period from July 9, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Upon the occurrence of a Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit is repurchased on the Final Repurchase Day at the final
repurchase price per unit. The final repurchase price per unit is calculated by the Administrator in its sole discretion in
accordance with the Offering Memorandum and the Appendix 31 as the Net Asset Value per unit on the Final Repurchase Day (or
if such day is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day) . Repurchase Day is each deal ing day which
is also a day onwhich no Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from time to
time determine in respect of the Series Trust. Unitholder is able to receive an amount in respect of each unit repurchased
on any Repurchase Day prior to the Final Repurchase Day equal to the Net Asset Value per unit as at the relevant Repurchase
Day (or if that Repurchase Day is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day) (the“ Repurchase
Price” ). There is no repurchase fee applied to the Repurchase Price in respect of each unit being repurchased.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on April 30, 2021.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The preparation of financial
statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and requires the Trustee and
the Manager to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust"s accounting policies. Areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 27) (2012) (the Amendments).
Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an investment entity.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortized cost, fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The classification of

financial assets under IFRS 9 is general ly based on the business model inwhich a financial asset is managed and its

contractual cash flow characteristics.
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Period from July 9, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL.
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at

FVTPL:

i) Itisheld within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;

and,
ii) Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely represent payments of principal

and interest (SPPI).
A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

i) Itscontractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding;

ii) It is not heldwithin abusiness model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows, or to both
collect contractual cash flows and sell;

iii) Atinitial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FVTPL when doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets

or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing
or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Series Trust

considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

leverage features;

prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Series Trust"s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features);

and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

For the Period from July 9, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2020
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

- Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, prepaid fees, receivables for units issued
and sale of investment in the Selected Fund. These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flow.

- Other business model: this includes financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (investment in the Selected
Fund) . These financial assets are managed, and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent
sales taking place.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model inwhich a financial asset is held, the Series Trust
considers all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

- the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether the
investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or
realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust"s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model)
and how those risks are managed;

- how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed
or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust"s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost include payables for purchase of investment in the Selected Fund,

investment management fees, fee agent fees, units repurchased, distribution fees, transfer agent fees, administrator
fees, custody fees, professional fees and agent member company fees.
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Period from July 9, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Impairment of financial assets

The' expected credit loss’ (ECL) model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and debt investments

at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.

Based on the Series Trust"s assessment, the ECL model does not have a material impact on the Series Trust"s financial

assets because:

- The majority of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impairment requirements do not apply to such

instruments.

- The financial assets at amortized cost are short-term (i.e. no longer than 12 months), of high credit quality and/or
highly collateralized. Accordingly, the ECLs on such assets are expected to be small.

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the period from July 9, 2019
(Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2020:

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after July 9, 2019 and
earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early applied these new or amended standards in
preparing these financial statements as they do not have a material effect on the Series Trust"s financial statements.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and short-term deposits with original maturity of three months or less to

be cash and cash equivalents.

At December 31, 2020, the Series Trust held the following balances as cash and cash equivalents:

2020
Cash $ 28
Time deposit 3,378,118
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position $ 3,378,146
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Period from July 9, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

(A) Classification
The Series Trust classifies financial assets and liabilities into the following categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Mandatorily at FVTPL: Investment in the Selected Fund.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2020
- Fair Value - Cost

Investment in the Selected Fund $ 458,894,983 $ 435,939,452

Financial assets at amortized cost:
Cash and cash equivalents, prepaid fees and receivables for units issued and sale of investment in the Selected Fund.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Other liabilities: purchase of investment in the Selected Fund, investment management fees, fee agent fees, units
repurchased, distribution fees, transfer agent fees, administrator fees, custody fees, professional fees and agent
member company fees.

(B) Recognition/Derecognition

The Series Trust recognizes financial assets and liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date - the date on which the
Series Trust commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognized when its contractual obligations are discharged, canceled or expired.

(C) Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value with
transaction costs recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the’ financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss" category are
presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period inwhich they arise. Realized gains or losses on sale of
investments are calculated using first-in-first-out method.

Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss are carried at amortized cost using

the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, ifany. This is considered to approximate fair value due to the
short-term or immediate nature of these instruments.
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Period from July 9, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

(D) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. Investments or other assets for
which market quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair value as determined in good faith in accordance
with procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice from the Manager. The resulting change in unrealized gains or losses are

reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(E) Forward Contracts

Forward contracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument, currency, commodity or an
index at a specified future date for a specified price and may be settled in cash or another financial asset.

Forward contracts are valued using observable inputs, such as currency exchange rates or commodity prices, applied to
notional amounts stated in the applicable contracts. Gains and losses are reported in net realized gain or loss on
financial assets through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(F) Investment in the Selected Fund

Inprinciple, the Investment Manager will invest a majority of the Net Asset Value in the Selected Fund. The Selected Fund
is denominated in USD. The Investment Manager will not invest in non-USD denominated assets. The Series Trust"s investment
in the Selected Fund is subject to the terms and conditions of the Selected Fund*s offering documentation. The Series Trust
records its investments in the Selected Fund at fair value based primarily on the Selected Fund"s net assets value

(* NAV" ), as determined by the administrator of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust reviews the details of the reported
information obtained from the Selected Fund*s administrator and considers: (i) the liquidity of the Selected Fund, or its
underlying investments, (ii) the value date of the NAV provided, (iii) any restrictions on redemptions, and (iv) the basis
of accounting. Since the Series Trust invests substantially all of its assets in the Selected Fund, net capital
appreciation or depreciation, respectively, of the Series Trust is general ly based on net capital appreciation or
depreciation, respectively, of the Selected Fund. The value of the Series Trust"s investment in the Selected Fund is based
on available information and does not necessarily represent the amount that might ultimately be realized, as such amount
depends on future circumstances and cannot reasonably be denominated unlit the Selected Fund"s underlying investment are
actually liquidated. Further, the Series Trust"s investment in the Selected Fund in indirectly subjected to restrictions,
if any, of the liquidity of the Selected Fund"s investments.
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Period from July 9, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The Series Trust"s investment in the Selected Fund is considered to be liquid and can be redeemed on any business Day. The
Series Trust may at any time request the repurchase of its units at the applicable net asset value of such units. The
designated agent of the Selected Fund (the* Agent” ) shall effect repurchases at the net asset value per unit of the
relevant class of the Selected Fund determined on the relevant dealing day on which the request for repurchase of units ina
form that is acceptable to the Agent is received by the Agent, calculated as set in the offering memorandum of the Selected
Fund; provided that if such a request to repurchase units is not received by the Agent prior to 12:00 noon (Eastern time),
the request for repurchase will be deemed to have been received and the repurchase will be made at the relevant net asset
value per unit determined on the next dealing day. After such repurchase, the Series Trust must hold either (i) such
minimum amount of units as specified herein relating to the Selected Fund or (ii) no units whatsoever. The minimum holding
requirements for the Selected Fund is $100,000 investment in Class B (USD). The investment minimum is inU.S. Dollars or
the equivalent in another currency. For the Selected Fund, payment of the repurchase price will be made by the Trustee or
its appointed agent by bank transfer generally within three (3) business days after the dealing day upon which the
repurchase notice is received, or deemed to have been received, by the Agent, although under certain circumstances,
payment may take up to eight (8) business days after such dealing day.

2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only when
there is a legal ly enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. As at December 31, 2020, all financial assets and liabilities
are shown at their gross amounts as none met the criteria for financial instrument offsetting and therefore have not been
offset in the Statement of Financial Position.

2.4 Receivables for sale and payables for purchase of investment in the Selected Fund

Receivables for securities sold and payables for securities purchased represent trading transactions that have been
contracted for but not yet settled on the Statement of Financial Position date, respectively. These amounts are recognized
initially and subsequently measured at fair value, less provision for impairment for amounts of receivables for
securities sold. A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Series Trust will not
be able to collect all amounts of receivables for securities sold. Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default in payments are considered
indicators that the amount of receivables for securities sold is impaired.

2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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2.6 Foreign Currency Translation

(A) Functional and Presentation Currency

The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported to the investors in U.S. Dollars. The Trustee considers the
U.S. Dollar as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events
and conditions of the Series Trust. The financial statements are presented inU.S. Dollars, which is the Series Trust"s

functional and presentation currency.

(B) Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in U_S. Dol lar amounts at the date of
valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities, issue and repurchase of units and income and expense
items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. Dol lar amounts on the respective dates of such

transactions.

Reported net realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are included in net realized gain or loss on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and net change in unrealized appreciation or
depreciation on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

Realized and unrealized appreciation or depreciation from foreign currency transactions and translation are disclosed
separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.7 Distributions

The Series Trust may generate a certain amount of income each year. The current policy of the Series Trust is that the
Series Trust is not expected to pay distributions to unitholders provided that, the Manager may, in its discretion,
declare and pay distributions to unitholders from time to time.

IT the Manager does declare any distributions, it is anticipated that any such distributions are declared on an annual
basis on each distribution declaration date from investment principal (a realization of units in the Selected Fund) and
generated income received during the relevant distribution period (if any). SF Manager does not expect to declare
distributions with respect to the Selected Fund.

Any such distribution is determined by the Manager in its sole discretion taking into account:

(a) an amount equal to the distributions received from the Selected Fund (net of all applicable taxes) (if any);

(b) interest accrued on the distributions received from (a) above, from the time received by the Custodian until paid out

on the corresponding distribution date (the items referred to in paragraphs (a) - (b) hereafter referred to as the

"Generated Income™); and
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(c) realized and unrealized capital gains from the Selected Fund and miscellaneous costs, among other factors, per unit
each year.

Any distribution may be paid inwhole or in part out of investment principal attributable to the units, that is in excess of
any Generated Income received (and which may also be in excess of any capital gain) over adistribution period, where the
Manager deems the Generated Income received to be insufficient of itself to fund that year*s distribution (such as where
the Selected Fund does not declare a distribution during the relevant distribution period).

There were no distributions declared and paid during the period ended December 31, 2020.
2.8 Repurchases of Units
The Series Trust has units which are repurchased at the holder®s option. The Series Trust classifies its puttable
instruments as liabilities in accordance with IAS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Presentation.
The amendment requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to be classified
as equity where certain strict criteriaare met. Those criteria include:

The puttable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets;

The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be identical;

There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the obligation on the
issuer to repurchase; and

The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantially on the profitor
loss of the issuer.

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust”s units have been classified as equity at December 31, 2020.

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Series Trust"s total
equity.

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the holder
exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust”s total equity per unit at the time of issue or

repurchase. The Series Trust"s equity per unit is calculated by dividing the total equity by the total number of
outstanding units.
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The Selected Fund finances its operations by issuing redeemable shares which are puttable at the holder*s option and
entitles the holder to a proportional stake in the respective Series Trust"s net assets. The Series Trust holds shares in
the Selected Fund. The Series Trust"s maximum exposure to loss from its interests in the Selected Fund is equal to the total
fair value of its investments in the Selected Fund. Once the Series Trust has disposed of its shares in the Selected Fund
the Series Trust ceases to be exposed to any risk from the Selected Fund.

2.9 Indemnities

The Trustee and the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enter into certain contracts that contain a variety of
indemnifications. The Series Trust"s maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown. However, the Series Trust has
not had prior claims of losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.

2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased

Receivable for units issued is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Financial Position
date. Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial
Position date.

2.11 Net income/(loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL

Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes realized and unrealized gains/losses on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. Net realized gain or loss from financial instruments at FVTPL is
calculated using the first in, first out method. Net realized (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL
represents the difference between the cost of the financial instruments and its settlement price of the sale trade. Net
change in unrealized (depreciation)/appreciation on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL represents the difference
between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price if itwas
purchased in the current reporting period and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period. Refer to Note 6 and 7
for further details.

Interest income presented on the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise interest on financial assets and liabilities
at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest basis.

2.12 Taxation
The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it fromall local income, profits and
capital gains taxes until December 2, 2063. No such taxes are levied in the Cayman Islands at the present time.

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and capital gains. Such
income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Withholding taxes
would be shown as a separate item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. No withholding tax expense was paid during the
period ended December 31, 2020.
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The Selected Fund may choose to invest in securities domiciled in countries other than Cayman Islands. Many of these
foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents including the
Selected Fund. These capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such
taxes may not be deducted by the Selected Fund®s broker ona* withholding’ basis.

In accordance with 1AS 12 - Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it is probable that
the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to be assessed on the Series Trust"s capital gains sourced from
such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and circumstances. The
tax liability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation authorities using the tax laws and
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. There is sometimes uncertainty
about the way enacted tax law is applied to offshore investment Series Trusts. This creates uncertainty about whether or
not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax liabilities
management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which could influence the
likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities.

As at December 31, 2020, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a liability to record for any
unrecognized tax benefit in the accompanying financial statements. While this represents the Manager®s best estimate
there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital gains earned by the Series
Trust. This could happen without giving prior warning, possibly on a retrospective basis, and could result in a loss to the

Series Trust.

2.13 Investment in unconsolidated structured entities
The Series Trust has concluded that all investments in the unlisted Selected Fund, inwhich it holds an interest but does
not consolidate, meets the definition of structured entities due to the following:
the voting rights in these entities are not the dominant rights in deciding who controls them as they relate to
administrative tasks only;
the entities” activities are restricted by their respective investment strategy or offering documents; and
these entities have a narrow and wel I-defined objective to provide investment opportunities to investors.

The nature of and risks associated with the Series Trust"s interest in the other funds are disclosed in Note 5.
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3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Net Asset Value of each unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value of the Series Trust by the
total number of units of the Series Trust then outstanding. The Administrator computes the Net Asset Value of the Series
Trust at the close of business on each dealing day.

The price of units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid inU.S. Dollars.

The minimum initial subscription must be no less than 1 unit. All unitholders must complete a subscription application.
The initial purchase price of units is $100 per unit. All payments for the units must be made in U.S. Dol lars.
The Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

After the initial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent subscription date at the
relevant subscription price. All payments for the units shall be made inU.S. Dollars.

The Trustee or its duly designated agent must receive the subscription price for the units on or prior to 5:00 p.m. (Tokyo
time) by no later than the second business day after the relevant subscription date. Subscription applications are
irrevocable.

The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of December 31, 2020 were as fol lows:

Net Asset Value per
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding unit

Class A Units $ 459,898,656 4,413,801 $ 104.1956

As of December 31, 2020, all issued units were held by one unitholder, who holds 100% of interest in the net assets.

Aunitholder may transfer its holdings in units only with the prior written consent of the Trustee which consent shall not
be unreasonably withheld or delayed. No transfer of units will be effective and binding on the Trustee or unitholder until
entered into the Series Trust"s register of unitholders.

Each unitholder may submit to the Trustee or its duly designated agent a repurchase notice requesting to have all or a
portion of its units repurchased at the Repurchase Price on the relevant repurchase date. Repurchase orders may be
submitted inunits. If such notice is not in respect of the entire holding units of such unitholder recorded in the register
of unitholders, then the Trustee in its sole discretion may apply a minimum repurchase requirement of 1 unit. Repurchase
notices are irrevocable.

At the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each unit being
repurchased.
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Contingent Deferred Sales Charge ("'CDSC™)
The repurchase proceeds payable to a unitholder may be subject to the deduction of the CDSC (if applicable).

For units that are repurchased prior to the fifth anniversary of the date of their issue (whether voluntarily or by way of a
compulsory repurchase), a CDSC, calculated as a percentage of the purchase price paid at the time of subscription for such
units will be charged by the Distributor in accordance with the fol lowing scale and paid to the Fee Agent.

Holding Period CDSC
1 year or less 2.00%
More than 1 year to 2 years or less 1.60%
More than 2 years to 3 years or less 1.20%
More than 3 years to 4 years or less 0.80%
More than 4 years to 5 years or less 0.40%
More than 5 years None

For the purpose of calculating the holding period applicable to the CDSC, units will start ageing from the first day of the
month which fol lows the month in which such units were issued until the relevant Repurchase Day.

The CDSC (if applicable) will be deducted from the Repurchase Price and is payable by the relevant repurchasing unitholder
to the Fee Agent and not to the Series Trust.

Upon a Compulsory Repurchase Event occurring or the Series Trust terminating prior to the Final Repurchase Day, the CDSC
shall similarly apply; and the CDSC will be calculated as if the relevant units were repurchased on the day on which the
Compulsory Repurchase Event or termination of the Series Trust takes effect, unless the Manager in its discretion

determines otherwise.

In accordance with the terms of the Fee Agent Appointment Agreement, the Fee Agent shall continue to be entitled to receive
the CDSC if its appointment as Fee Agent is terminated.

Amounts payable to the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units of any class are paid in cash but may be made in
kind (or partially in kind) by the distribution of securities held by the Trustee to the extent that the Trustee, in
consultation with the Manager, determines it to be in the best interests of the unitholder. If such a determination is made

by the Trustee, distributions to all repurchasing unitholders on the same day are made on the same basis.
Payment may also be made in such other currency that may be freely purchased with such applicable currency as a unitholder

may request, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted from the amount payable to such unitholder. No such
repurchase proceeds will bear interest prior to actual distribution.
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During the period ended December 31, 2020, the proceeds from units issued, repurchased and outstanding were as follows:

At
July 9, 2019
(Commencement of Proceeds from units Proceeds from units At
Classes of units Operations) issued repurchased December 31, 2020
Class A Units $ - 3 466,613,897 $ (23,115,256) $ 443,498,641

During the period ended December 31, 2020, the number of units issued, repurchased and outstanding were as fol lows:

At
July 9, 2019
(Commencement of At
Classes of units Operations) Units issued Units repurchased  December 31, 2020
Class A Units - 4,642,188 (228,387) 4,413,801

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended in any circumstances where
the calculation of the Net Asset Value per unit is suspended. The Trustee will inform unitholder of such a suspension as
soon as practicable after it is imposed or lifted. Subscription applications and repurchase notices cannot be withdrawn
during such suspension and will be processed for the next subscription date or repurchase date, as the case may be.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The Series Trust may, from time to time, hold
financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives. Fair values of such
instruments are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used to

determine fair values, they are validated and periodical ly reviewed by the Manager .
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5. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust”s investment portfolio mainly comprises of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust"s activities expose it to
avariety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The management of these risks is carried out by the Manager under policies approved by the Trustee.

The Series Trust may be material ly affected by the actions of another entity investing in the Selected Fund. For example,
if another unitholder of the Selected Fund repurchases some or all of its interests in the Selected Fund, the Selected Fund
and, inturn, the Series Trust, may experience higher pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing lower returns.
Similarly, the Selected Fund may become less diverse due to repurchases from its other unitholders, resulting in increased
portfolio risk. The Selected Fund may restrict its investment activities or be precluded from investing in certain
instruments due to regulatory restrictions on certain of its direct or indirect investors or otherwise, which may have an
adverse effect on the performance of the Selected Fund, and, in turn, the Series Trust.

(A) Market Risk

(i) Currency Risk

All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents and other assets and liabilities held
by the Series Trust are denominated in U.S. Dol lars, thus the Manager believes that the Series Trust has little currency
risk exposure, and is not subject to risk due to direct fluctuations in the prevailing levels of foreign currency rates.

Investment in the Selected Fund in which the Series Trust invests may be denominated or quoted in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Series Trust. For this reason, changes in foreign currency exchange rates can affect the value
of the Series Trust"s portfolio.

Generally, when the Series Trust"s functional currency rises in value against another currency, a security denominated in
that currency loses value because the currency is worth less giving effect to the conversion into the Series Trust"s
functional currency. Conversely, when the Series Trust"s functional currency decreases in value against another
currency, a security denominated in that currency gains value.
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This risk, generally known as "currency risk," means that a strong functional currency of the Series Trust may reduce
returns to investors while aweak functional currency of the Series Trust may increase those returns. Currency rates may
fluctuate significantly over short periods of time for a number of reasons, including changes in interest rates,
intervention (or the failure to intervene) by the governments, central banks or supranational entities such as the
International Monetary Fund, or by the imposition of currency controls or other political developments. As a result, the
Series Trust"s investments in foreign-currency denominated securities may reduce its returns. Certain positions taken by
the Series Trust are designed to profit from forecasting currency price movements. Predicting future prices is inherently
uncertain and the losses incurred, if the market moves against a position, will not be hedged. The speculative aspect of
attempting to predict absolute price movements is generally perceived to exceed that involved in attempting to predict
relative price fluctuations.

Through the use of various types of foreign currency transactions, the Series Trust may be exposed to the performance of a
particular currency or currencies to contribute to the performance of the Series Trust. There can be no assurance that the
Manager will employ a successful currency program and the Series Trust could incur losses attributable to its currency
activities when the value of the functional currency weakens against the other currencies of the Series Trust. In
addition, the Series Trust will incur transaction costs in connection with the currency strategy designated by the

Manager .

(ii) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that prices of fixed income securities generally increase when interest rates decline and
decrease when interest rates increase. Prices of longer-term securities generally change more in response to interest
rate changes than prices of shorter-term securities. The Series Trust may lose money if short-termor long-term interest
rates rise sharply or otherwise change in a manner not anticipated by Series Trust management. When interest rates
fluctuate, the duration of the security may be used as an indication of the degree of change in the debt price of the debt
security. The bigger the security”s duration value, the larger the change in the price of the debt security for a given
movement in interest rates may be. Therefore, the Net Asset Value may fluctuate.

Interest bearing assets held by the Series Trust are comprised of cash and cash equivalents whose maturity is less than

three months and indirectly, the investment in the Selected Fund.

The yield on the Selected Fund"s (and indirectly, the Series Trust"s) investments may be sensitive to changes in
prevailing interest rates, which may result in a mismatch between the Selected Fund*s asset yield and borrowing rates and

consequently reduce or eliminate income derived from its investments.

IT interest rates increase, prices of fixed income securities generally decline, reducing the value of the Selected Fund*"s
(and indirectly, the Series Trust"s) investments. A major change in interest rates or a significant decline in the market
value of the Master Fund®s (and indirectly, the Trust"s) investments, or other market event, could cause the value of the
investments of the Master Fund"s investors (and indirectly the unitholders® investments in the Series Trust), or its

yield, to decline.
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IT interest rates change, the values of longer-duration debt securities are usually subject to greater change than the
values of shorter-duration debt securities.

The Series Trust may invest in fixed income securities through its indirect exposure to the investments of the Selected
Fund. Any changes to prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of future rates may result in an increase or
decrease in the value of the securities held.

At December 31, 2020, should interest rates have lowered or risen by 50 basis points with all other variables remaining
constant, the increase or decrease in total comprehensive income of the Series Trust (being increase in net assets
attributable to the holder of units from operations for the period) would amount to approximately $16,891, assuming that

the cash position will be held for one year.

(iii) Market Price Risk

The market price of investments owned by the Series Trust and securities held by the Selected Fund may go up or down,
sometimes rapidly or unpredictably. Securities may decline in value due to factors affecting securities markets generally
or particular industries represented in the securities markets. The value of a security may decline due to general market
conditions which are not specifical ly related to a particular company, such as real or perceived adverse economic
conditions, supply and demand for particular securities or instruments, changes in the general outlook for corporate
earnings, changes in interest or currency rates or adverse investor sentiment. They may also decline due to factors which
affect a particular industry or industries, such as labor shortages or increased production costs and competitive
conditions within an industry. During a general downturn in the securities markets, multiple asset classes may decline in
value simultaneously. Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fixed income securities.

An increase in market prices of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at December 31, 2020, would have increased the
total equity by $4,588,950. A decrease of 1% would, all else being equal, have an equal but opposite effect.
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The following table summarizes the geographical concentration in market price risk of the Selected Fund"s at December 31,
2020 as a percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Country Name Fair Value % of Net Assets
Investments in securities

Argentina $ 643,261 0.1%
Australia 807,694 0.2%
Bermuda 4,337 0.0%*
Brazil 391,919 0.1%
Britain 42,667,977 9.2%
Canada 257,094 0.1%
Cayman Islands 21,915,414 4.8%
Finland 134,820 0.0%"
France 924,311 0.2%
Germany 7,337,663 1.6%
Guatemala 265,252 0.1%
Indonesia 239,557 0.1%
Ireland 11,894,386 2.6%
Israel 741,508 0.2%
Italy 3,548,693 0.8%
Japan 14,195,274 3.1%
Jersey 190 0.0%"
Liberia 628,967 0.1%
Luxembourg 9,778,466 2.1%
Mexico 2,961,475 0.6%
Multinational 17,260 0.0%*
Netherlands 7,822,074 1.7%
Peru 2,213,957 0.5%
Qatar 261,180 0.1%
Saudi Arabia 1,553,370 0.3%
Serbia 171,064 0.0%"
Singapore 804,880 0.2%
South Africa 2,532,278 0.6%
South Korea 1,956,652 0.4%
Spain 250,433 0.1%
Sweden 248,464 0.1%
Switzerland 7,771,813 1.7%
Turkey 4,658,169 1.0%
Ukraine 738,983 0.2%
United Arab Emirates 488,800 0.1%
United States 371,221,517 80.8%
Total investment in securities $ 522,049,152 113.8%

* A zero balance may reflect amounts rounding to less than 0.05%.

(B) Credit Risk

Changes in an issuer”s credit rating or the market"s perception of an issuer"s creditworthiness may affect the value of the
Series Trust"s investment in that issuer. The degree of credit risk depends on both the financial condition of the issuer
and the terms of the obligation.
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Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the credit risk associated with debt instruments
that may be held by the Selected Fund. All transactions in listed securities held by the Selected Fund are settled/paid for
upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only
made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the
broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet their obligation.

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust®s credit position on an on-going basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets of the Series Trust as of December 31, 2020 is the carrying
amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position. No col lateral or other credit enhancements are held by the Series
Trust. None of these assets are impaired or past due.

The clearing and depository operations for the Selected Fund"s security transactions are mainly concentrated with the
Custodian. At December 31, 2020, substantially all cash and cash equivalents and investments are placed in custody with
the Custodian, with a Fitch credit rating of A+.

The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Selected Fund"s debt portfolio at December 31, 2020 as a
percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Rating” % of Net Assets

Aaa 24.9%
Aal 1.6%
Aa2 0.5%
Aa3 0.1%
Al 0.6%
A2 4.1%
A3 1.3%
Baal 0.8%
Baa?2 3.1%
Baa3 5.3%
Bal 1.8%
Ba2 5.0%
Ba3 2.8%
B1 4.7%
B2 2.3%
B3 0.6%
Caal 0.9%
Caa2 1.9%
Caa3 1.1%
Ca 1.2%
C 0.6%
NR 46.8%
WR 1.8%
113.8%

*Security ratings, ifany, are obtained from /Moody s/ S&P~s/ Fitch™s Investor Service.
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(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

(C) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series Trust"s investments in
illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell the illiquid securities at
an advantageous time or price. To the extent that the Series Trust"s principal investment strategies involve derivatives
or securities with substantial market and/or credit risk, the Series Trust will tend to have the greatest exposure to
liquidity risk.

The table below analyzes the Series Trust®s financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At December 31, 2020 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total

Payables for:

Purchase of investment in the

Selected Fund 15,855,918 - 15,855,918
Investment management fees 1,547,896 - 1,547,896
Fee agent fees 686,544 - 686,544
Units repurchased 185,099 - 185,099
Distribution fees 174,452 - 174,452
Transfer agent fees 90,302 - 90,302
Administrator fees 52,890 - 52,890
Custody fees 29,584 - 29,584
Professional fees 25,466 - 25,466
Agent member company fees 10,244 - 10,244

Contractual cash out flows (excluding

net assets attributable to the holder

of units) $ 18,658,395 $ - 3 18,658,395

The Manager monitors the Series Trust"s liquidity position on an on-going basis.

Liquidity risk is managed by investing no more than 15% of the Net Asset Value in illiquid assets.

There were no Series Trust™s derivative financial instruments at December 31, 2020 with gross settlement.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the liquidity risk associated with unitholder
repurchases in accordance with the terms in the Selected Fund"s Prospectus. The Series Trust is managed to include liquid
investments sufficient to meet normal liquidity needs although substantial repurchases of Units in the Series Trust could
require the Selected Fund to liquidate its investments more rapidly than otherwise desirable in order to raise cash for the
repurchases. These factors could adversely affect the value of the units repurchased and the valuation of the units that
remain outstanding and the liquidity of the Series Trust"s remaining assets if more liquid assets have been sold to meet
the repurchases.
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There were no repurchase fees applied in respect to the Selected Fund for the period ended December 31, 2020.

(D) Risk Management
The Series Trust”s Investment Manager"s team is supported by certain risk management systems and professionals, which
provide regular reporting on all portfolio positions and quantitative risk measures.

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to the holder of units.

The amount of net assets attributable to the holder of units can change significantly on a daily basis as the Series Trust
is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of the unitholder. The Series Trust"s objective when
managing capital is to safeguard the Series Trust”s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
the unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the
investment activities of the Series Trust. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Series Trust"s policy
is to perform the following:

Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and adjust the amount of
distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of units.

Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Series Trust.
The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holder of units.
5.2 Additional Series Trust"s Risks
(A) Custody Risk
Neither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust®s entire holding of indirect
investments. The Custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to act as custodians may become insolvent, causing

the Series Trust to lose all or a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians.

(B) Risk of Indemnification
The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their respective agents,
principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Series Trust under

certain circumstances which may result in a decrease in Net Asset Value per unit.
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(C) Settlement Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United States, the
European Union and Japan. Foreign settlement and clearance procedures and trade regulations also may involve certain
risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically associated with the settlement of United
States investments. At times, settlements in certain foreign countries have not kept pace with the number of securities
transactions. These problems may make it difficult for the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager to carry out
transactions for the account of the Series Trust. If the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a purchase of
securities, itmay miss attractive investment opportunities and certain of the Series Trust"s assets may be uninvested

with no return earned thereon for some period.

If the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a sale of securities, the Series
Trust may lose money if the value of the underlying security then declines or, if it has contracted to sell the security to
another party; the Series Trust could be liable for any losses incurred.

(D) Derivatives

The Manager may use derivative instruments to hedge the Series Trust"s investments or to seek to enhance the Series Trust"s
returns. Derivatives allow the risk exposure of the Series Trust to increase or decrease more quickly and efficiently than
other types of instruments. Derivatives are volatile and involve significant risks, including:

CreditRisk the risk that the counterparty (the party on the other side of the transaction) on a derivative

transaction will be unable to honor its financial obligation to the Series Trust.
Leverage Risk  the risk associated with certain types of investments or trading strategies that relatively small
market movements may result in large changes in the value of an investment. Certain investments or trading strategies

that involve leverage can result in losses that greatly exceed the amount originally invested.

Liquidity Risk  the risk that certain securities may be difficult or impossible to sell at the time that the seller
would like or at the price that the seller believes the security is currently worth.
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The Manager may use derivatives for hedging purposes for the Series Trust, including anticipatory hedges. Hedging is a
strategy inwhich the Manager uses a derivative to offset the risks associated with other Series Trust"s holdings. While
hedging can reduce losses, it can also reduce or eliminate gains or cause losses if the market moves in a manner different
from that anticipated by the Manager or if the cost of the derivative outweighs the benefit of the hedge. Hedging also
involves the risk that changes in the value of the derivative will not match those of the holdings being hedged as expected
by the Manager, inwhich case any losses on the holdings being hedged may not be reduced and may be increased. There is no
assurance that the Series Trust"s hedging strategy will reduce risk or that hedging transactions are either available or
cost effective. The Manager is not required to use hedging for the Series Trust and may choose not to do so. Because the
Manager may use derivatives to seek to enhance the Series Trust"s returns, its investments will expose the Series Trust to
the risks outlined above to a greater extent than if the Manager used derivatives solely for hedging purposes. Use of

derivatives to seek to enhance returns is considered speculative.

As of December 31, 2020, there were no Series Trust derivative assets and derivative liabilities subject to netting

arrangements and similar arrangements.

(E) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the Custodian, with which the
Manager or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial difficulties and
default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Series Trust. Any such default could result in material
losses to the Series Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge col lateral for the account of the Series Trust to the
counterparties in order to secure certain transactions. No collateral was pledged by the Manager during the period ended
December 31, 2020.

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

(F) Generated Income and Distributions

There is no guarantee that there will be any Generated Income. Distributions (if any) may be paid inwhole or in part out of
investment principal attributable to the units or, alternatively, the Generated Income may be zero. A distribution can in
effect result in areturn of an investor®s initial capital or capital gains thereby eroding that capital to the extent the
distribution exceeds available income. In consequence of this possibility, investors seeking capital preservation may
not achieve this given probable deterioration in the value of the Series Trust"s investments caused by declining asset
values and a return of capital to investors by way of distribution. If the Series Trust is not profitable, the Repurchase
Price a unitholder receives back in respect of a repurchase of units may be less than the unitholder®s initial investment.
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The Generated Income partially relies on the receipt of distributions paid by the Selected Fund. Should the Selected Fund
fail to pay any distributions or pay less than anticipated, including due to a rise in the non-treaty tax rate applicable to
the Series Trust, then the Series Trust will gain correspondingly less than investors may previously have expected.
Furthermore, if the interest rate at which the distributions received accrue falls during the yearly period, this may also
lead to the Generated Income being lower than expected.

(G) No Interest in the Selected Fund
The return on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Fund. An investment in units does
not give a unitholder adirect interest in the Selected Fund.

(H) Early Termination of the Series Trust
Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2163, the Final Repurchase Day will be
brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur.

(I) Other Risk

During the period, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization. The situation is
dynamic with various cities and countries around the world responding in different ways to address the outbreak. The rapid
development and fluidity of this situation precludes any prediction as its ultimate impact, which may have a continued
adverse impact on economic and market conditions and trigger a period of global economic slowdown.

Management and the Trustees are monitoring developments relating to COVID-19 and are coordinating its operational
response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from global health organizations, relevant
governments, and general pandemic response best practices.

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Series Trust applies IFRS 13 Fair value measurement and utilizes the last traded market price for its fair valuation
inputs for both financial assets and liabilities.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing
at each period end date. Valuation techniques used for non-standardized financial instruments such as options, currency
swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent arm®s length transactions, reference
to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other
valuation techniques commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs.
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For instruments for which there is no active market, the Series Trust may use internally developed models, which are

usual ly based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry. Some of the inputs
to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions. The output of a model is
always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and valuation techniques employed
may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the Series Trust holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted,
where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including model risk, liquidity risk and counterparty risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the

inputs used in making the measurements.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined
on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose,
the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement
uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ' observable’ requires significant judgment by the Administrator, under
advisement of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager, considers observable data to be that market
data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided
by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.
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The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of December 31, 2020 in valuing the Series
Trust's financial assets:

(Unadjusted) Quoted Significant Significant
Prices in Active Other Observable Unobservable

Financial Assets at Fair Markets for ldentical Inputs Inputs Fair Value at
Value Through Profit or Loss Investments (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) December 31, 2020
Investment in the Selected Fund
PIMCO Bermuda Low Duration Income
Fund, Class B (USD Class) $ - 3 458,894,983 $ - 3 458,894,983
Financial assets, at fair value
through profit or loss $ - $ 458,894,983 $ - $ 458,894,983

During the period ended December 31, 2020, there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2.
These include over-the-counter derivatives and debt securities. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not
traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity
and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

For purposes of calculating the NAV of the Selected Fund, fixed income securities for which market quotes are readily
available are normal ly valued on the basis of quotes obtained from established market makers or pricing services and are
classified as Level 2 investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund. Forward contracts are valued using
observable inputs which can generally be corroborated by market data and are therefore classified as Level 2 investments
in the financial statements of the Selected Fund. As of December 31, 2020 all financial assets and liabilities were
classified as Level 2 investments.

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

(i) At December 31, 2020, cash and cash equivalents and all other assets and liabilities (including prepaid fees,
receivables for units issued, sale of investment in the Selected Fund and payables for purchase of investment in the
Selected Fund, investment management fees, fee agent fees, units repurchased, distribution fees, transfer agent
fees, administrator fees, custody fees, professional fees and agent member company fees) are deemed short-term
financial assets and liabi lities whose carrying amounts approximate fair value because of their short-termnature.
Refer to Note 2 for a description of the valuation techniques.
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5.4 Investments in unconsolidated structured entities

As of December 31, 2020, the Selected Fund"s net asset value was $458,892,672. As of December 31, 2020 the Selected Fund
held total investments of $559,561,964 comprising of fixed income securities (asset backed-securities, bank loan
obligations, commercial real estate equities, common stocks, convertible bonds and notes, corporate bonds and notes,
mortgage-backed securities, rights, sovereign issues, U.S. government agencies, U.S. treasury obligations and warrants)
of $522,049,152, short-term instruments (corporate bonds, repurchase agreements, time deposits and sovereign issues) of
$41,775,820, futures contacts of $220,960, forwards contracts of $(1,640,269) swaps contracts of $(2,582,382), written
options contracts of $(109,934) and written swaptions of $(151,383).

The valuation of investments in unconsolidated structured entities represents the amount the Series Trust would expect to
receive if itwere to liquidated or redeem its investments subject to the underlying fund®s liquidity or redemption
restrictions and costs.

The rights attached to the Series Trust"s holding in the Selected Fund is similar to those of other investors.
Subscriptions into the Selected Fund are governed by the rights stipulated in their offering documents. The Series Trust
has the ability to liquidate or redeem its investments periodically in accordance with the provisions of the respective
fund agreements. Refer to Note 1 for information regarding the investment objectives of the Selected Fund.

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward Contracts

The Investment Manager for the Selected Fund enters into forward contracts for the Selected Fund by buying forward

contracts, under normal circumstances in an amount equal, to the extent possible, to approximately 100% of the USD
exposure of the Net Asset Value (excluding unrealized currency gain or losses).

The Investment Manager enters into forward contracts for the Series Trust by buying forward contracts.
As of December 31, 2020, there were no open forward contracts in the Series Trust.
7. NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

December 31, 2020

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss consist of the following:

Net realized gain on investment in the Selected Fund $ 706,769
Net realized gain on investments in forward contracts 11
Total net realized gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss $ 706,780

Movement in net unrealized appreciation on investments in the

Selected Fund $ 22,955,531
Total net change in unrealized appreciation on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss $ 22,955,531
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8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

8.1 Fees and Expenses

(A) Administrator Fees

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.06% on the first US$500 million of the net assets, 0.05% on the next US$500
million of the net assets and 0.04% on the net assets over US$1 billion, subject to a monthly minimum fee of $3,750. The fees
earned by the Administrator during the period ended December 31, 2020, and outstanding fees payable to the Administrator
as of December 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial

Position, respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Custodian receives an annual fee of 0.025% of Net Assets Value. The fees earned by the Custodian during the period ended
December 31, 2020, and outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of December 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(C) Distribution Fees

The Distributor receives an annual fee of 0.25% of the Net Asset Value payable monthly in arrears. The Distribution Fees
are payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the
Distributor during the period ended December 31, 2020, and outstanding fees payable to the Distributor as of December 31,
2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(D) Transfer Agent Fees

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of the Net Asset Value and a $10 fee per transaction out of the assets of
the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Transfer Agent during the period ended December 31, 2020, and outstanding fees
payable to the Transfer Agent as of December 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the

Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(E) Professional Fees
Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the period ended December 31, 2020, and outstanding
fees payable to the Transfer Agent as of December 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

8.2 Related Party Transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Fee Agent, Manager and Agent

Member Company are all related parties to the Series Trust.
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There were no other transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business.

(A) Trustee Fees

The Trustee is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee a fixed annual fee of $10,000 payable annually in
advance. The fees earned by the Trustee during the period ended December 31, 2020, and outstanding fees payable to the
Trustee as of December 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of

Financial Position, respectively, as a part of fee agent fees.

(B) Investment Management Fees

The Investment Manager receives an annual fee of 0.55% of the Net Asset Value payable quarterly in arrears.

The fees earned by the Investment Manager during the period ended December 31, 2020, and outstanding fees payable to the
Investment Manager as of December 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement

of Financial Position, respectively.

(C) Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.12% of Net Assets Value (the "Operational Costs Fees') and 0.55% of Net Assets
Value (the "Sales Administrative Fees™), accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day.

The Operational Costs Fees and the Sales Administrative Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee out of
the assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Fee Agent during the period ended December 31, 2020, and outstanding
fees payable to the Fee Agent as of December 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying the Manager Fees, the Trustee Fees and costs and expenses, which are, in the
reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent, determined as associated costs and expenses of the Manager Fees and Trustee Fees
(the "Ordinary Costs").

For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the Sales Administrative Fees, investment
manager fees, audit fees, formation expenses, distribution fees, administration fees, custody fees, any broker fees
relating to security transactions, any legal and auditing costs that are not included in the audit fees and expenses,
annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to government bodies and agencies, any insurance costs, any
costs relating to the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 31 and other similar offering documents and the costs relating to
the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such documents and any taxes relating to the purchase or disposal
of securities, legal or compensation costs, licensing, tax reporting, anti-money laundering compliance and monitoring,
expenses related to the termination or the liquidation of the Series Trust and any other extraordinary costs and expenses

that would not usual ly occur.
To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent is liable for any

outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining fol lowing payment of the Ordinary Costs shall be retained by the Fee Agent as
its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust.
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The Operational Costs Fees and the Sales Administrative Fees accrue daily on an actual / 365 day count fraction basis and
are payable quarterly in arrears in the amount accrued, from and excluding, for the first accrual period only, the initial
closing day, and for all other accrual periods, the last day of each calendar quarter.

(D) Manager Fees

The Manager is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee, a management fee of $5,000 per annum payable monthly in
arrears. The fees earned by the Manager during the period ended December 31, 2020 and outstanding fees payable to the
Manager as of December 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of

Financial Position, respectively, as a part of fee agent fees.

(E) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company is entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value payable quarterly in
arrears. The Agent Member Company Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager out of the assets of the
Series Trust. The fees earned by the Agent Member Company during the period ended December 31, 2020, and outstanding fees
payable to the Agent Member Company as of December 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.
9. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

The Series Trust may borrow up to 10% of its Net Asset Value if required to facilitate short term cash flows. During the

period ended December 31, 2020, the Series Trust did not incur any borrowings.
10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through April 30, 2021, the date on which these financial

statements were available to be issued. Effective January 1, 2021 through April 30, 2021, there were subscriptions of
$92,953,292 and repurchases of $36,618,520. There are no other subsequent events to report as relates to the Series Trust.
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2021
526,093,665.19 57,307,382,949
5,289,567.78 576,192,618
520,804,097.41 56,731,190,331

4,958,560

105.03 11,441
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1,304,370,284

35,765,850

11
7,641,990,762

255,749,105

28 210,955,012,557
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38 59 131

23 103

2021 30
108.93
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2020 12 31
2020 2019

USD USD
16,025 1,746 34,534 3,762
16,025 1,746 34,534 3,762
4 16,025 1,746 34,534 3,762
5 220,000 23,965 215,000 23,420
(21) &)
236,025 25,710 249,513 27,179
6 (111,476)  (12,143) (143,734)  (15,657)
124,549 13,567 105,779 11,523
124,549 13,567 105,779 11,523

-

124,549 13,567 105,779 11,523
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2020 12 31

2020 2019

usD usD

9 1,643,796 179,059 1,436,186 156,444

10 220,970 24,070 217,427 23,684

1,864,766 203,129 1,653,613 180,128

10 217,933 23,739 131,329 14,306
217,933 23,739 131,329 14,306
11 735,000 80,064 735,000 80,064
911,833 99,326 787,284 85,759

1,646,833 179,390 1,522,284 165,822

1,864,766 203,129 1,653,613 180,128
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2020 12 31
uSsD uSsD USsD
2020
735,000 80,064 787,284 85,759 1,522,284 165,822
124,549 13,567 124,549 13,567
12 31 735,000 80,064 911,833 99,326 1,646,833 179,390
2019

735,000 80,064 681,505 74,236 1,416,505 154,300
105,779 11,523 105,779 11,523
12 31 735,000 80,064 787,284 85,759 1,522,284 165,822
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2020 12 31
2020 2019
UsD UsD
124,549 13,567 105,779 11,523
4 (16,025) (1,745)  (34,534) (3,762)
21 2
108,524 11,822 71,266 7,763
(3.543) (386)  (10,575) (1,152)
(3,543) (386)  (10,575) (1,152)
86,604 9,434 127,594 13,899
86,604 9,434 127,594 13,899
4 16,025 1,746 34,534 3,762
207,610 22,615 222,819 24,272
207,610 22,615 222,819 24,272

1,436,186 156,444 1,213,367 132,172

1,643,796 179,059 1,436,186 156,444

9 1,643,796 179,059 1,436,186 156,444

1,643,796 179,059 1,436,186 156,444
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KY 1104
309 c/o

Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman

Islands
(a

IFRS
IFRS I1AS
1ASB

(b

IFRS
(c

USsD
USsD
USD

171/234



(c

«

(e

(f

(9

@

172/234

EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ECL

USD



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(9

IFRS

ECL
ECL

(h

@

(a

C @C)
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(k

2020

IAS IAS

1ASB IFRS
Q)

15

2020 2019

16,025 34,534
16,025 34,534
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2020 2019
220,000 215,000
220,000 215,000

2020 2019

(34,668)

(1,182) (191)
(3,201) (3,119)
(107,093) (105,756)
(111,476) (143,734)

2039 10 10
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5,000 2019 5,000 2020 12 31
REITa
a
o
CS
US
US
NB  MYAM
UK
AMP
a
AMP REIT
J REIT
17 20
CAT
HOLT
PIMCO
J REIT

AHL
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SBI PICTET

J REIT

UsS

2020

2020 2019
1,643,796 1,436,186
1,643,796 1,436,186

2020 2019

220,970 217,427
220,970 217,427
2020 2019

217,933 131,329
217,933 131,329
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2020 2019
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2020

HKD USD

2019 12 31
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HKD

USD HKD
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31

220,863 220,863 215,000 215,000

220,863 220,863 215,000 215,000

214,732 214,732 25,573 25,573
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
949,732 949,732 760,573 760,573

2020 2019
220,000 220,000 215,000 215,000
220,000 220,000 215,000 215,000
2020 2019
107,093 105,756
107,093 105,756

2020 12 31
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Creck Susse Maragernen] (Crpman) Limilad
Finanzial sindements for e pear ended 31 Dacomber 2000

Statement of Profit or Loss for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

farenc
usp ng M'ﬂ 2020 2019

............................ InB,[EE: T h
= of wihich interast fncome from insiiments al amarlsed cost 16,005 34 534
Met interest income 4 16,025 34,634

Se-nno@feelrh:;:lme ......................................... e E‘?ﬂ,ﬂﬂﬂ “BEES

Met revenues 236,025 249,513

‘General, adminishalive and olher operaling expenses 6 (111,4TH) (143734)
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 124,549 105,779

Prafit before tax 124,549 105,779

Profit after tax 124,549 105,779

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial statements.
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Crody Sexzsa ermﬂ]_mmd
Moles lo Finandial sislemants for the year anded 31 Decombor 2090

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020

Roferenca
USD g 2020 2019

Cashandduefrombanks .09 1843796 1436,186
Other assels 10 290,970 217,497
Total assets 1,864,766 1,653,613

Uebilities T —
Other liabilities 10 217,933 131,329
Total liabilities 217,933 131,329

OnnIy B s e e e
Retained eamings T S 911,838 7AT.984
Total shareholders' equity 1,646,833 1,522,284

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 1,864,766 1,653,613

Mpproved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 10 June 2021

Brian Burkholder

The: accomparying notes form an integral part of these financal statements.
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Lol Siesee Management (Layran] Limisg
Malay b Francied stfements for fhe pear sncled 31 Dsvemibay 5000

Statement of Changes in Equily for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Share Retained
uso capital  eamings Total
2020
Bolanceat 1January 735000 787,284 1,522,284
Profit for the year — 124543 1024540
Balance at 31 December 735,000 911,833 1,646,833

2019
(Balanceatfjanuary 735000 681505 1416,505
Prodit for the year — 106,778 106,779
Balance at 31 December 735,000 T7E7.284 1,522,284

The accamparying notes form an integral part of these financial stalements.
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ek Sirsse Hvquf‘wq}:x:\kﬂ
Hodes fo Fiusncial strlernénds far the year andnd 31 Daconibar 200

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Rslarence 2020 2019
UsD to Mete
Cash flows from operating activities
Predit for the year 124,544 106,774

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
generated from operating activities

MNon-cash items included In nat profit before

tan and other adjustments:
bt ol o S TPRARURS AU PUPNIRMIRS | L P | 2. SO, o
Other Loss e TR

Cash generated from operating activilies
befora changes In operating assets and

liakilities 108,524 71,266
Net(ncrease) inoperatingassets:
Other assets {3,543) (10,575)
Net (increase) in operating assets (3,543) {10,575}
Netincreaseincperating lebllitles: . .
Oihver liabilities BEE604 127 5G4
Netincrease in operafing labilities 86604 127,584
Interest incomea received 4 16,025 34 534
Met cash generated from operating activity 207,610 222,819
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 207,610 222,819
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 1,435,186 1,213,367
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,643,796 1,436,186
Cash and due from banks g 1,643,798 1,436,186
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,643,796 1,436,186

The accompamying notes form an integral part of these financial stalements.
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Crea? Suinse Management (Cryman] Limifeo
Nedes fa Financis slafamands for bha year snded 31 Decamier 2090

Motes to the financial statements
1.  Principal activities

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited {ike "“Company™ Is incarparated in the Cayman |slands
with limited liability. The Comparyy's principal actvities are the crealion of trusts and the administration
ared management of assels in trusts. The Company’s registered office s cfo Maples Comporate
Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman |slands.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs", which collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financlal Reperting Standards, Infermational Accounting Standards [ASs™) and
Interpretations issued by Infernational Accounting Standards Board (MIASE"). A summary of the
sigrificant accounting policies adopted by the Company Is set out below.

(h) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measuremant basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis,

The preparation of financial statements in conformily with IFRSs requires management to make
judgemenis, estimales and assumplions thal affect the application of policies and reported amounis
of assets, habdities, income and expenses, The eslimates and assoclated assumptions are based on
Fistorical experence and various other faciors thai are befeved to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the bagis of making the judgements abeut carnying valhees of
assets and liabililes that are net readily apparent from other sources, Actual results may differ fram
{hese estimates.

The estimates and underling assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to
aceounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimale is revised i the revision
gffects only that period, or in the perdod of the revision and future parods if the edsion affects bath
curert and fulure periods,

(c) Forelgn currency

The Company's functional and presertation curency is United States Dollars ("USDY. Foreign
ocwrency transachions during the year are translaled into USD at the foreign exchange rates niling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and Bebilties denominated in foreign currencies are franslated
into LiSD at the forelgn exchange rates ruling al the end of the reparting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or loss,

Mon-monetary assets and lisbilties that are measured in terms of histerical cost in a foreign currency
are translated inte USD using the foreign exchange rafes ruling at the transacdion dates. Non-
monelary assets and liabilibes dencaninated in foreign cumencies that are stated at fair value are
franslated Lsing the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign
currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in prafit ar loss,
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Croct? Sifzse Managemant (Capman) Limbad

Nolas ko Financial slalamants for fie yoar ended 31 December 2090

2, Significant Accounting Policies {(continued)
{d)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from hanks comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and shosi-term, highly
Fauid imvestments that are readily comvertible inte known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within theee months of maturity al acquisition,

(e) Other assats

Other assels are initially recogrised at fair value and thereafler slated al amodised cost less
Expected Credit Loss CECL") (refer o Note 2(g)), except where the receivables are interest-fres
loans made o related parties without any fiked repayment terms or the affect of discounting would be
immaterial, In such cases, the recetvables are stated at cost less impaioment for bad and deubtiul
debts,

{f Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for Sabifies of unceriain timing or ameunt when the Company has a legal
or constructive obligatisn arising as a result of a past event, t is probable that an cutflow of economic
benefits will be required fo settle the cbligation and a reliable estimate cash be made, Whers ihe
fime vaue of money s matedal, provisions are stated al the present value of the expenditure
epecied o setthe the obligation,

Wherse it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estmated reliably, the obBigation s disclosed as a contingent Babdlily, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benafits [s remate. Passible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the ocourrence or non-cocwrrence of one or more future events are also disclased as contingent
liabilities unless the probabity of outflow of ecanemic benefits is remate,

fa)  Impairment

The camying amount of the Company’s assets Is reviewed at the end of each reporling period to
determine whether ihere is any objsctive evidence of impairment, If any such obiechve svidence
exists, the assel’s recoverable amount is eslimaled at the end of each reporting period. An
impairnent loss i recognised whenever the camying amount of an assel exceeds ils recoverable
amcunt. Impairment losses are recogrised in the profit or loss.

Undar IFRS 9, the impaimment requirements apply primarily to financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The impaiment requirements are based on a forward-looking espected credit lass madal by
incorporating reasonable and supporfable forecasls of future economic conditions avalable at the
reporting date, This requires: conskderable judgement cver how changes in economic factors affect
ECLs, which is detesmined on a probabiity-weighted basiz.

(h) Revenue recognition
Frovided thal it is peobable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured refiably, service fee income s recognised in profit of loss whan
the investment management service |5 provided,

(i Expenses

Al espenses are recognised in profit and less on an accrual basiz,
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Related parties

For the purposes of these financial stafements, a party is considered to be related to the Company if
{a)  Aperson, or a close member of that person's family, is related to the Company if that person:
{i) has conlral or joint contral aver the Company;
(#)  has significant influence over the Comparny; or
{lii} is a member of the key management persorned of the Company or the Company's parenl.

o) Anentity is related to the Company i any of the following conditions applies:

() The enfidy and the Compary are members of the same group {which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is refated fo the othars).

(i} One entity is an associate or joinl vertire of the other enfity (or an associate or joint
vanture of a member of a group of wivich the other entity is a member),

(i}  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

{v)  One entity is a joint venture of a thidd party and the other entity is an assocate of the
third party,

(v} The entily is a post-employment benefil plan for the benefit of emploveas of aither the
Company o an entity related to the Company.

{vi} The entity s contralled or jaintly controlled by a person identified in {2).

(vil} A persen idantified in (2)() has significant influence over the entity or i a member of the
key management personnel of the entity {or of & parent of the entily).

Close members of the family of a person are those famdy members who may be expected to
inflaence, o be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

The Company has apphied the follewing stendards and amendments for the first fime for thelr annual
reparting perod commencing 1 January 2020;
» Definition of Material = amendments to 1AS 1 and IAS 8
* Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporing
The amendments sted above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prioe periads
ard are not expected to significantly affect the current or future perieds,

Changes in Accounting Policies

The LASE has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the cumrent
accounting pericd of the Company. Mone of these developments have had a malerial effect on how

{he Company's results and financlal pesition for the current or prisr perods have been prepared or
presented in Mote 2(k).

The Company has not applied any new standard or inferprefation that is net yet effective for the
current accounting period (Note 18).
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Croat Srezso Managemnal (Cayenan) Limedaol

Nalas fo Finsncid stafemends for the yor andeg 31 Decembar 2000

Met Interast Income

usD

Nat interast Inca:-me

interest income on cash and due from banks

Total interest incomea

2020 2019
16005 34534
16,025 34,534

All the above interest income on instruments are al amorlised cosl.

Service Fee Income

The principal aclivities of the Company are the creation of trusts and the adminislration and

managaement of assets in trusts.

Fevenue represents invesimant management fee income earmed from fellow subsidiany as follows:

UsD 2020 2019
B G
Service fee income 220,000 215
Total revanues 220,000 215,000
General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses
uso 2020 2019
General administrative and other operating expenses i
Otherexperses .. s s
Barkcharges T T T T Li8g) “911
Mllﬂrremurbemtm e {&Qﬂﬂ !9’}
‘Directors’ ramuneration {1{}'? 093) "1{]5 'I"E.ﬁj
Total general administrative and other operating expenses {111,478) {143,734)

Al of the above expenditures are payable to the Company’s immediate holding company and the
imnnediate holding company setles such expenditures on behalf of the Company,

Taxation

There are na taxes on income or gains in the Cayman lslands and the Company has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Council of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income,
profits and capiial taxes until 10 October 3039, Accordingly, no provision for income taves is included

in these financizl slaternents.
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Lo Suizsg Manggamen! (Cayman] Limied
Medad fo Flinancial stalarnpnii for fhe paar andad 31 Decembar 200

8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Spansared unconsofidaled struciued anfities

The Company consicers itself the sponsor of a structured antity when either e name appears in the
name of the slruchwed entity or in products issued by i or there is a general expectation from the
market that the Company is associated with the structured entity or the Company was Imvolved in the
dasign or set up of the structured entity and has a form of Invelvement with the structured entily.

The below unconsokdated struclured entilies are sponsored by the Company where a fixed annual
management fee of USD 5,000 (2018 USD 5000} is received but no interest iz held by the
Company as at 31 Decembar 2020;

Gilobal REIT Inceme Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investars Orby)
Austmiian ngh [Jh»dem:l EqL.rty T\Mn ﬁ-&:ha Fund {Fﬂr Gmliﬁed 1n5t|l_:l:r_|mnai Imestms Clnlg.r}

................................................................................................................

Global REIT Triple Ptemlum Fund ['Fnr Cualified Institutional nvestors Orﬂy}
us Htgh Div Eqmty Premium Fund {For C‘.'m!illuad !qshh.rhmal Investars Onw R
US Small an Eqult}' P‘rernn.lm Fund {Frar Oualified Institutional Investors Only)

"Ciaiwa Emerglng an:al Maﬂ:et Bmd Fund {Fa:- Elua.lrimd Irﬁ'hhllnar'nl lrr-'estor; Clnl'E}

US F'refe;rad HEIT Im::ma Fund {Fe:ur (lb.tah‘hed Instihutional Investaors Dnl;,r}

Ja!uan ::qm'_,.r Premium Fund (For Ouaified institutional Investors Dnly)

AP Maﬁ FEIT Fund {Fbr Chalified instibAional investors DI'I*'_{]
.J-HEIT and Rﬁal Estate Eq,uty Fund {Fm Qua}rfaed Institutional Investors Dni}r}

gangr? American High Dividend Equily Ouatire Income Fund (For Qualfied Instiubonal investors

...............................................................................................................

Japanese Government Bond 17-20 Year Lacder Fund {Foc 'Duallflad Instiutional Investers Only)
Australia REIT Flurld

'Ms{raﬁa REITPs
us Trea-sur_y 5.7 "‘fear Ladde! Fund {For Ut.aliﬁed Insl:ih..rl:mnal Imestam Gnty}
_US Municipal Bmd Fund
Tokic Marine CAT Bond Fund
Glﬂbﬁ.‘ th Dhﬁdmd Equrl;.r Prem|ulnl'£ Ezmd {Far Cluahﬁéﬁ II‘EH!.l.rIJDrhal Irnreslms Gnl;.r}
Ma&t&r g Cﬂlm:hc-n

HCIE_T Eum Equrl;.r F‘rmnmmFund Ef_ur _(;b.;ah!‘-zed Irtsﬁu.r!mm lmresm Chl',l_}

P!MCD Short Term Inl;Dn‘lﬂ Stra.'lag}r Fund
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Crocif Seésse ilanagemont (Cayman) Limiled
Mobas b Finarcd siatemenis for e year ended 3T Decombar 2020

8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities {continued)

Foresgn Denominated Man AHL Smart Leuemge Strategy Fund
SEI F‘-cle* Assa. Hl-Tg-:n "-"Enlure Fund _

AUD Shod TermBond Funa 7

.ﬁ-..-la ::qurly Inme Pius Stra!ag:,r Fund L'Far E]L:ahh&d Insxriuhr:md Imﬁtcrs E wiy}

_E!jlr.se.u E.Jr:-pean Band Fund [Fc-r Duall!'e;i 1r|51|.mt|mal Investars Gnly}"
D.:mmde Emtr'-:l Equity Fum:i [Fn:-r Uuall'pad Inshlutlonal In'-'estcrrs Gnly}

* The funds wers terminialed durlng 2090,

The Comparry has not provided finandal or other support to consolidated structured entities that it was
not cantractually requived o provide,

The Company does mol cumently have the intentlon fo provide financial or other support o
unconsaolidated struclured entities that it is not contractually required 1o provide.

8. Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash equivalents compnsa:

Ush 2020 2019
Cash and due from banks

Cash and dus from banks 1,643,795 1,435,186
Total cash and due from banks 1,643,796 1,436,186

10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities

usp 2020 20149
Other assets

Interest and fees recaivable 290,970 P17 AT
Total other assets 220,970 217,427
usp 2020 2019
Other liabilities

Interest and fees payable 217,983 131,329
Total other liabilities 217,933 131,329

i2
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Crodit Suiszo Managamant {Cayman} Limited
MNoltas fo Financial statements for the yoar ended 31 Dacamber 2020
Share Capital
Authorised and issued share capital
2020 2019
Me. of usD MNo. of uso
shares shares
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of USD 1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

lzsuad and fully paid up:
Owelinary shares

35,000 TIE000 T36,000 735,000

The helders of ordinary shares are antitled to recetve dividends as declared frem time to fime and are
entitied to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
wilh regard fo the Company's residual assets.

Capital management

The Comparyy's primary objectvas when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability lo
cantinue as a going concem so that it can continue to provide refums to sharehcldess, by pricing
services commensurately with the leve! of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost. As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company's sources of additional capital and
policies for distribution of excess capital may also be affected by the group's capital management
objectives. The Company defines “capital® as inckuding all companents of equity.

The Company's capital structure is regulary reviewed and managed with due regard to the capital
rmanagament practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adusiments are made o tha
capital structure in light of changes In economic conditions affecting the Company or the group, to
the extent that these do not conflict with the directors’ fiduciary duties towards the Company.

The Comparry was nat subject to externally Impesed capital requirements in the curment period.
Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign cumency risks arises in the nermal course of the
Company's business. Thase risks are managed by the Company”s financial management policies and
practices descrbed befow,

Credit risk

The Company’s credif fisk is primardly attibutabbe to amounts due from group companies and cash at
bank. Credit risk is defined as risk that one parly to a financial instrument will cause a linandal loss lo
anather party by failing to discharge an obligation. Management requlady menitors ifs risk exposure o
ensure that its credit sk i kept fo a minimal leved. The maxmum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the camying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial posifion after
deducting any impairment allowance,
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Credlf Suisse Management (Capman) Linited
Notes fo Financial stsfernants for the year ansled 31 Docoyrber 2020

Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (confinued)
L quiclity risk

The Compary's policy is 1o regularly monitor its Bquidity requirements to safisfy its contractual and
reasonably foreseeable obligations as they fall due,

&t 31 December 20020 and 2019, all of the Company's financial ilabilities, which includes all craditors
angd accruals, are an dernand or undated and are expected to be setfled wilhin thiee monihs,

Interest rate risk
The Company Is exposed 1o interes) rate risk only to the extent that it eamns bank interest on cash

and deposts. At 31 December 2020 and 2019, a change in inferest rates weuld hawe no direct
malerial effect on the camying valus of the recognised assets or liabilities of the Company.

Foreign cumency risk

The Company Is exposed to forelgn currency risk primarily through certain fransactions which give rise
to payablas that are danominated in Hong Kong dallars ("HKD.

As lhe HKD is pegged to the USD, the Company considers thal the risk of movements in exchange
rates between LSO and HKD ta be insignificant.

Fair values

The camying amounis of the Compamy’s financial instruments carded al cost or amertised cost are
rot materially differant from thelr fair value a2 at 31 December 2020 and 2018,

Material Related Parly Transactions

In additicn to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financlal stalements, the
Campany entered into the following materizl related party fransactions,

Related party balance sheet transactions

31 Decembar 2020 31 Decembar 2019

Parent Fallow Tatal Parant Fallow Total
Graup Graup
uso Campanies Companies
Assels
Othar assots - 200,853 QM BE3 — 215,000 215,000
Total assots - 220,863 220,863 - 215,000 215,000
Liabilithes and Equity
bl ORI . 1. PR O L~ . T s N . shard
Sham capital 735,000 = F35.000 TIO00 - 735,000
Total liabilitles and
sharaholders” aqul 248,732 = 949,732 780,573 - TEO573
14
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Cradif Suisse Managemenf (Cayman) Limilod
Motes fo Financial statemants for the year anded 31 Decamber 2000

13,  Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

()] Related party revenues and expenses

2020 — 2ma
Parent Eulmv Tatal Parnent Eelo‘w Tatal
roug roasp
ush Companias Companias
Revanuas
R e O e vereemaeee 220000 ZOD00 = 215000 215,000
Tolal revanues - 220000 220,000 ~  TI5000 215000

{c) Remuneration of key managemant personnel

Remunaration of key managemant personnal (LISD) PLupL | 019
Shart-tem amployee banafits 107,083 5, TRE
Totsl Remuneration of key mansgement personne] 107,093 105,756

14. Parent and Ultimate Holding Campany

At 21 December 2020, the immediate parent of the Company is Credit Sulsse (Heng Kong) Limited,
which is incorporated in Hong Kong and the ultimale controling party of the Company s Credit
Sulgse Group AG, which is incorporated in Switzerland, Credt Suisse Group AG produces financial
statements available for public use.

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2020

Certain rew accounting standards and interpretations have been published thal are not mandetory for
31 December 2020 reporling periods and have mot been early adopted by the Company. These
standards are not expected to have a material impact on the endity in the cument or future reporting
pariods and on foreseeable fulure transactions,

16. Subsequent Events
There have been no matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial period,
which significartly affected, or may significantly sffecl, the operatians of the Company, the results of
ihose operalions, er the siate of affairs of the Company in future financial years,

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of direclors of the Company en 10
June 2021,
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D) (Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited)

2021 100 893

IntertrustN.V.

@) (Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.)
2021
8,500 1,073
1940 206(4)-2(c)(3)
®3)
2021 781
4)
2021 1 7,709
2001 4 2002
12

2003 3
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(Credit Suisse International)

123 6,600 1 3,470
1990 1985
2500199 1990
2006
E14  4QJ +44
58 8

16

1,341 1,674.44 14 6,100
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Telephone +1 345 949 4800
Fax +1 345 949 7164
Internet www.kpmg.ky

Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund (the "Series Trust"), a series
trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2020, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the period from
July 9, 2019 (commencement of operations) to December 31, 2020, and notes, comprising significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Series Trust as at December 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
period from July 9, 2019 (commencement of operations) to December 31, 2020 in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("1SAs™). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the "Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements™ section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance

with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust®s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust"s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors® report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust"s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors™ report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors® report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

April 30, 2021
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the ““Company”?) set out on pages 3 to
15, which comprise:

a. the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

b. the statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

c. the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

d. the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e. the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (““IFRSs”?).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““ISAs”?). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board

for Accountants (““IESBA Code””), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

a. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 10 June 2021
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